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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
IRBRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, it is
my pleasure to present to you the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Adhering to the spirit of “customer-oriented”, the Group dedicated
unremitting efforts to perfecting its treatment services and product
offerings in the past year. The Group strives to keep abreast of the
latest technologies and offers the most effective treatment devices to
customers. More importantly, the Group offers a wide range of
treatment services and procedures customised to optimise the result
of treatment offered to customers. In that direction, it also expanded
its “Cospeutic” and “CosMax” product lines during the past year. We
also regularly conduct market research on our treatment technologies
and skin care products to ensure they are able to satisfy customers’
needs. We are pleased to report that these efforts led to a notable
growth in net profit approximately by HK$26.4 million this year
compared with last year. Excluding the one-off listing expenses and
the forfeited rental-related deposits, profit attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 would have been
approximately HK$17.9 million. The increment excluding the one-off
expense effect was HK$8.6 million or 48.0%.

Recently we have also strategically expanded our business by
entering into a lease agreement to open a new medical aesthetic
centre at Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui. One of the most popular
shopping complexes in Hong Kong, Harbour City boasts vast existing
and potential consumer traffic. We believe, with the upcoming
opening of TST centre, the Group can strengthen its competitiveness
and better seize opportunities brought about by the increasing
demand for its services. The expanded network of stores can also
offer greater flexibility to customers in picking where to use our
services, which is crucial to retaining customers in the long run.

To maximise the profitability of existing centres and achieve higher
operational efficiency, the Group has decided to move its two
Causeway Bay Centres in Soundwill Plaza into a duplex unit in the
same building. By merging the centres, the Group is able to better
allocate resources and reap synergies for boosting service capabilities.
The higher cost efficiency from the merge of operations will also allow
the Group to sustain growth and expansion in the long term. For
customers, the duplex centre promises a better, more convenient and
efficient treatment environment, therefore a more satisfactory service
experience. Hence, we believe the move will strengthen the Group’s
competitive advantage and attract more potential clients.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
IRBRES

The overall operating environment was challenging for the Group in
the past year, with property rental expenditure and other operating
costs rising consistently. Nevertheless, by drawing on the strengths
of our experienced management team and professional medical
team, and leveraging effective promotional campaigns and building
on our stable customer base, we have maintained leadership in the
medical aesthetic services industry and continued to be widely
recognised across different sectors.

Looking ahead, the Group remains confident about the prospects of
the medical aesthetic services industry. The management team will
continue to develop solid operating strategies and push for long-term
healthy development of the Group. Together with our staff, we will
strive to reinforce our industry-leading position and further penetrate
the market by actively grasping opportunities arising from our
expanding customer base. Therefore, we are optimistic that we can
help the Group sustain strong growth momentum and create greater
value for shareholders.
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support to the Group. My heartfelt appreciation also goes to our
management and professional colleagues for their dedication and
valuable contributions to the Group in the past year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Business Review

Miricor is a provider of medical aesthetic services in Hong Kong. It
currently operates three “CosMax”-branded medical aesthetic centres
at prime locations in Causeway Bay and Central District, offering to
customers a wide range of trusted non-surgical medical aesthetic
services and quality skin care products that can improve their
complexion and overall physical appearance. Miricor tailors each and
every treatment solution and caters for customers’ individual needs,
with safe and professional treatment performed by experienced
doctors and well-trained therapists. Its non-surgical medical aesthetic
services include energy-based procedures, injection procedures and
other solutions.

The Group derives its revenue mainly from: (i) provision of treatment
services; (i) provision of medical consultation services; (iii) prescription
and dispensing of medical products; (iv) sale of skincare products;
and (v) forfeited revenue from unutilised prepaid packages.

For the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group’s revenue increased by HK$27.1 million, or 27.1%, to
HK$127.2 million when compared with the previous year. The rise
was primarily attributable to the increase in promotional campaigns in
different marketing channels, such as the telemarketing strategy and
active promotional campaigns on various social media platforms,
which raised consumer awareness of the “CosMax” brand, and
secured more customers. Profit for the Year Under Review surged by
HK$26.4 million to HK$26.5 million when compared with last year.
The marked increase in profit was mainly due to one-off listing
expenses of approximately HK$14.9 million and the forfeited rental-
related deposits of HK$2.9 million incurred during the year ended 31
March 2017. Excluding the one-off listing expenses and the forfeited
rental-related deposits, profit attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 would have been
approximately HK$17.9 million. The increment excluding the one-off
expense effect was HK$8.6 million or 48.0%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Business Review (Continued)

The Group has recently entered into a lease agreement to open a new
medical aesthetic centre at Harbour City, Tsim Sha Tsui. Harbour City
is a large-scale shopping complex at a prime location in Kowloon with
high pedestrian flow. The approximate size of the site is 6,050 sq ft
and the centre is expected to have around 17 treatment rooms. It will
be the Group’s first medical aesthetic centre on Kowloon side. The
Group is confident that the new centre will attract more customers for
a more geographically diverse customer base and effectively cope
with the rising customer traffic. The expansion will also help boost the
Group’s market penetration in the long term. The centre is expected
to commence operation in June 2018.

The Group has also decided to move its two Causeway Bay Centres
in Soundwill Plaza into a duplex unit in the same building. The merged
centre on the penthouse level of the building will have its own exclusive
elevators. It will have an enlarged overall floor area of 12,156 sq ft. The
Group believes the centre will allow better allocation of resources and
reap operational synergies. By offering a full suite of services under
one roof, the new centre promises to enhance customer experience in
order to attract and retain customers.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 93 treatment devices for
performing a range of treatment procedures. During the Year Under
Review, new treatments including PicoPlus, Ultra Deep, BioEnergetic
Therapy and Juvederm Volite were introduced for advanced skin and
body refinement. The devices and procedures were clinically
evaluated by doctors before being adopted to ensure a safe and
valuable consumer experience.

The Group also expanded its “Cospeutic” and “CosMax” product
lines, launching 17 and 4 new skincare products during the Year
Under Review. Its skincare products include cleansers, toners,
serums, emulsions, creams, eye products, sunblock and masks. All
the products have passed all relevant safety tests, which included a
patch test on tape-stripped skin, a heavy metals contamination test,
a microbial contamination test and an SPF test for SPF-specific
products.

As a result of its effective promotional campaigns and high brand
recognition, the Group retained 6,091 active loyalty members and
attracted 2,340 new customers during the Year Under Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Business Review (Continued) E G ZNE )
A year-over-year analysis of key clients are set out below: FRFEEPNFESTAT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE

% change
2018 2017 B EE

Number of active clients (Note a)  &EEREF A (Fista) 6,091 5,156 18.1

Number of repeat clients (Note b)  [E15E% A 21 (FizEb) 3,751 3,454 8.6

Proportion of repeat clients EEERMEREPFRAGE

amongst active clients 62% 67%

Number of new clients (Note ¢)  #1 & F AB(FizEc) 2,340 1,702 37.5

Number of referred clients ENRS A 1,395 912 53.0

Referral rate xR 60% 54%

Notes: ffEE -

a. Clients who have made at least one purchase of services or products, or received  a. PRV RFEELBE —ARBRERIEDE
at least one treatment session in the relevant financial year. Z—RERNEP -

b. Clients who (i) have made at least one purchase of services or products or  b. MEBVBFER()ELBE - ARBEXERIE
received at least one treatment session in the relevant financial year; and (i) have DEZ—IRER R)BEYZARMKEE RS
previously consulted us or made purchase of services or products in the past. HEMBEF ©

c. Clients who for the first time have made at least one purchase of services or  c. REAMRFEEAELESE -~ AREREMNE
products in the relevant financial year. B

Financial Review B [ol

Revenue &

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic ~ IS E BR GIRHEBEEXARE - £1F
services, which include treatment services, consultation services, as  BIZIRT « HHRS - LWRBEEERE S ME
well as the prescription and dispensing of medical products. In % o f4h » RIIA B HEEEER -
addition, we sell skin care products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$127.2 million & E2018F3A31 B ILFE - REB WA
for the year ended 31 March 2018, representing an increase of 1272 B && T - BEE2017F3A31 HILEF
approximately HK$27.1 million or 27.1% as compared with HK$100.1 ~ E#100.1 & &8 LB INL27.1 B EB T
million for the year ended 31 March 2017. The rise was primarily  5027.1% ° BRIEINT B L RANETR ™5 #
attributable to the increase in promotional campaigns in different  EZRERMNEEES) - HIUNEHE 8RR Z1(E
marketing channels, such as the telemarketing strategy and active  # X IEEEF SFREIREITHEZE @ IEaHEE
promotional campaigns on various social media platforms, which  ¥f [CosMax | @ iEHR% - W HREE LTS -
raised consumer awareness of the “CosMax” brand, and secured

more customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Set forth below is a breakdown of our total revenue during the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017:

B 7% ol g8 (&)

Wi (&)

RIIBE 2018 KR 2017463 A31 A ILEEH
AR 2= AE YT

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31ALEE

2018 2017

HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

FERT Btk FHT AL

Treatment services BERERE 112,828 88.7 90,074 90.0

Medical consultation services — 22f& 34 ) RS 459 0.4 677 0.7

Prescription and dispensing of 2% & §h & 77 M fic %%

medical products 1,737 1.4 2,178 2.1

Skin care products EEEm 9,830 7.7 4,681 4.7
Revenue recognised from TERT B R FEHENE

unutilised prepaid packages 127 Wi 2,359 1.8 2,494 2.5

Total revenue Wesiazs 127,213 100.0 100,104 100.0

(i) Revenue from treatment services
During the year ended 31 March 2018, most of our revenue
was derived from treatment services. Revenue from treatment
services amounted to HK$112.8 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 and HK$90.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2017, representing 88.7% and 90.0% of our total revenue,
respectively.

(i) Revenue from consultation services

First-time clients are required to attend medical consultation
with our doctors, during which our doctors will perform
examination as well as assess and/or make a diagnosis on the
client’s skin conditions and recommend suitable treatment
services accordingly based on their specific conditions, needs
and concerns. After the first visit, follow up consultation
sessions will also be provided when appropriate to keep track
of clients’ conditions.

Revenue from consultation services amounted to HK$0.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and HK$0.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing 0.4% and
0.7% of our total revenue, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products

Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skin care products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to HK$1.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2018
and HK$2.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017,
representing 1.4% and 2.1% of our total revenue, respectively.

Revenue from sale of skin care products

Skin care products include cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser,
eye care products, ultraviolet (UV) protection products and
masks. We offer two lines of private label skin care products,
namely “CosMax” and “Cospeutic”, that treat a range of skin
conditions. To provide more choices and meet individual needs
of clients, we also sell several other selected brands of skin care
products provided by third party manufacturers.

Revenue from sale of skin care products amounted to HK$9.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and HK$4.7 million
for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing 7.7% and
4.7% of our total revenue, respectively. The increase of
approximately HK$5.1 million, or 108.5%, was primarily due to
the expansion of its “Cospeutic” and”CosMax” product lines,
launching 17 and 4 new skincare products during the Year
Under Review, the launch of the new promotions and the active
promotional campaigns mounted on various social media
platforms for skin care products.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid packages
Prepaid packages are offered to clients in connection with our
treatments. When designing the number of treatment sessions
in a prepaid package, we take into account, among other
things, our doctors’ assessment and also the protocols
recommended by the suppliers of treatment devices in respect
of the number of optimal sessions which should be taken to
achieve the desired results.

Revenue recognised from unutilised prepaid package amounted
to HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
HK$2.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2017, representing

only 1.8% and 2.5% of our total revenue, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other income and gain, net

Other income and gain, net accounted for approximately HK$1.4
million and HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
2017, representing 1.1% and 1.1% of the total revenue for the
respective year. The increment mainly arose from bank interest
income from more time deposits placed at various financial institutions
during the year ended 31 March 2018 with the proceeds from issue
of shares.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$13.0 million and HK$9.8 million for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017, representing 10.2% and 9.8% of the total revenue,
respectively.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by approximately HK$7.6 million, or 19.3%,
from approximately HK$39.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 to approximately HK$46.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
commissions paid to doctors and front-line staff whose incentive
scheme is tied to various key performance indicators such as the
number of packages sold or number of treatments conducted. As a
result of the increase in sales of packages and total revenue,
commissions payable to doctors and front-line staff increased for the
year ended 31 March 2018. The increase in staff costs was also
attributable to the increase in headcount to 96 employees as at 31
March 2018 (2017: 82).

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses increased by approximately
HK$2.5 million, or 25.3%, from approximately HK$9.9 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017 to HK$12.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. The increase was primarily due to additional office and
medical aesthetic centre rental expenses and other related costs
such as management fee and government rates, etc.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense amounted to approximately HK$7.0 million and
HK$6.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
representing 5.5% and 6.2% of total revenue for the respective years.

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased by approximately HK$14.5 million, or
44.8%, from approximately HK$32.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2017 to approximately HK$17.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018. The decrease was primarily attributable to the one-off

listing expenses incurred during the year ended 31 March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was approximately HK$4.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2017. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in
profit before tax, excluding the effect of non-deductible expenses
such as listing expenses incurred during the year ended 31 March
2017.

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$26.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2018, representing an
increase of approximately HK$26.4 million as compared with the year
ended 31 March 2017. For the year ended 31 March 2017, the one-
off listing expenses and the forfeited rental-related deposits were
approximately HK$14.9 million and HK$2.9 million, respectively.
Excluding the one-off listing expenses and the forfeited rental-related
deposits, profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017 would have been approximately HK$17.9
million. The increment excluding the one-off expense effect was
HK$8.6 million or 48.0%.

B 7% ol (&)

FrieBimx
HZE2018F3AIALFEREE2017F3
A31BLEFENMEHAZDNAR4I0BE
BT RISEBEBATL BEEMEERBRM
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FRER
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RARHEE ARG BEFOA179BERT - Ml
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48.0% °

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Profit for the year and FiN/NEIE ¥ =N 2
total comprehensive income FEHF
for the year attributable to owners FEEE2EmEA
of the Company R 26,513 59
Adjustments for one-off expenses: LRBH—RERY
Listing expenses WX = 14,926
Forfeited deposits wWoR Wik e - 2,950
Adjusted profit for the year KRR F N A 26,513 17,935
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$77.9 million as at 31 March 2018. Our
working capital, represented by net current assets was HK$91.0
million. Based on our steady cash inflows from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate liquidity
and financial resources to meet our working capital requirements and
to fund our budgeted expansion plans in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2018, all of our cash and bank balances was
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the
consolidated statement of cash flow of our Group for the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017:

f% B
EECWIEENEE2018F3A31 HIEAF
EREARE (2017 F + &) -

nENE & LKIFEEIR

MBEIR

BB EEFRINM BN - 201843 A
STEHMBRERREEBMATIIBEST -
ZMMEEE(BINBEEFRE) /I1.0A
BET - RBERMECEESNRBRTER N
A EBREHANRE RRITES - RPIEHR
HNRBESEITBHER  NENEEESE
KRR T —MIREFERNTEERRTE -

R2018F3A31 H » B2 IR MIETT
ESHRABITLETE ©

BEREDIT
TREIEEE A AE B REZE20184F £ 2017
FI3ASTHIFENGARERERNER

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 % change
FHET FHET Ebzlrd-$)
Net cash flows from/(used in) LT E RS (FTA)H N/A
operating activities ReneFHE (14,258) 43,302 NE A
Net cash flows used in REERHFRAREREFE
investing activities (43,277) (8,897) 386.4
Net cash flows from BMEEBAEER
financing activities WemEHE - 71,788 (100.0)
Net increase/(decrease) in BeERESEEY N/A
cash and cash equivalents B GRld) FEE (57,535) 106,193 i A
Cash and cash equivalents at FURMIREEFEEY
beginning of the year 135,444 29,251 363.0
Cash and cash equivalents at FRIREFIREEED
end of the year 77,909 135,444 (42.5)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Cash Flow Analysis (Continued)

Our cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year were
approximately HK$77.9 million as at 31 March 2018, as compared to
approximately HK$135.4 million as at 31 March 2017, the decrease
was due to the increase in pledged time deposits and increase in
non-pledged time deposits with original maturity more than three
months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2018, our net cash flows used in
operating activities was HK$14.3 million, which was primarily
attributable to increase in pledged time deposits of approximately
HK$48.6 million and increment of trade receivables of HK$19.3
million resulted from longer settlement day of certain financial
institutions. Excluding the increment of the pledged time deposits and
trade receivables, the net cash flows from operating activities was
HK$53.6 million.

Net Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2018, our net cash flows used in
investing activities was HK$43.3 million, which was primarily
attributable to increase in purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and increase in non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of more than three months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities
For the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no movement in net
cash flows from financing activities.

Commitments

The contractual commitments of our Group were primarily related to
the leases of our office premises, medical aesthetic centres, car park
space and certain office equipment. As at 31 March 2018, our
Group’s operating lease commitments amounted to approximately
HK$33.7 million (2017: approximately HK$15.8 million).

As at 31 March 2018, our Group had capital commitments in respect
of the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$0.4 million (2017: HK$0.4 million).

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the year, the Group acquired items of plant and equipment
amounting to HK$9.3 million (2017: HK$6.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, our Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2017: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2018, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2017: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of HK$51.8 million (2017: HK$3.3
million) pledged for banking facilities as security for credit card
instalments programmes.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2018, our Group had no interest-bearing borrowings
(2017: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business in Hong Kong and most of its
transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2018, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2018, our Group has a total of 96 employees (2017:
82). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group were
approximately HK$46.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: approximately HK$39.3 million). Remuneration is determined
with reference to factors such as comparable market salaries and
work performance, time commitment and responsibilities of each
individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house and/or
external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary, year-
end bonuses are offered to employees who performed outstandingly
to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to our Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE DN
Use of Proceeds SRS

The Company was successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange  ZR A TR 2017F1 B10BURRE([RE ) F
on 10 January 2017 (the “Listing”) by way of placing (the “Placing”). A Bz FrGEMEKIH Em ([ L)) - A& Fr
The net proceeds from the Placing were approximately HK$55.6 152 Fr{S N IE S4B 4) A 55.6 B BETT » JitRiE
million, which was based on the placing price of HK$0.8 per share FEEBER08EB TR EE MM ERBE XS
and the actual expenses related to the Listing. After the Listing, these £ o /4 » ZEMERBEL LR EEHENA
proceeds were and will be used for the purposes in accordance with QXA 2016 F 12 A 30 B HBIREZ R FrEi Ay R 2k
the future plans as set out in the prospectus of the Company dated =& -

30 December 2016.

The net proceeds from the Placing from the date of the Listingto 31 R EBREMMERIEEEE LT HE#EZ
March 2018 were used as follows: 20184 3 A1 HILHIM B E T3 A

Planned use of
proceeds as
shown in the

Planned use of Prospectus
proceedsas  from the date
shown in the of the Listing to

Prospectus 31 March 2018

(adjusted on (adjusted on Actual use of

a pro rata aprorata proceeds from Unutilised
basis based basis based the date of amount
on the actual on the actual the Listing to as at
net proceeds)  netproceeds) 31 March 2018 31 March 2018

BRER

FEB LT

AHEZE

2018

BRER 3A31AL
fiEEE HENAEHE

EHME BRERR BLEHEH

ME (B’ BE2018F
(REBFE i85 3A31HL i
REFHE R HEME 2018F3H31H
pAIEED) AE) FDENERAE HADANSE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TExT FTEx TET TET
(Note a)
(FfzEa)

Expand our network of medical B A IR EER 24,200 24,200 8,434 15,766  (Note b)
aesthetic centres BEZRTLPE GELD)
in Hong Kong

Broaden the variety of WA EERRE R 14,600 9,200 7,064 2,136 (Note g)
treatment services EmmEE (fiizEe)
and product offering

Refurbish our CWB Centre BB PR ) 4500 4500 - 4500 (Noted)

(Fi5Ed)

Upgrade our IT infrastructure  FHAR 3 A0 & 5171 3R e 7,700 2,400 5,991 - (Notee)

(Tizke)
General working capital —ReEES 4,600 3,000 3,000 -
55,600 43,300 24,489 22,402
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Use of Proceeds (Continued)

Note:

(@) The unused proceeds are deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong.

(b) The listing proceeds of approximately HK$15.8 million have not been utilised as at
31 March 2018. The Group will use up the remaining fund in the first quarter of
FY2019 for the opening of a new medical aesthetic centre in Harbour City.

(c) We brought forward the broadening of the variety of treatment services and

product offering in order to provide better service to our customer.

(d) The listing proceeds of HK$4.5 million has not utilised as at 31 March 2018. The
Group decided to move its Causeway Bay Centres to penthouse level in the third
quarter of FY2019. The fund will be used for the renovation of the merged centre.

(e) We brought forward the upgrading of our IT infrastructure in order to optimise our
operation and increase overall efficiency. We are at the initial stage of upgrading
the Accounting, Human Resources & POS system. The upgrading of systems is
expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of FY2019.

Prospects

The outlook of the medical aesthetic services industry remains
optimistic with market demand growing fast in recent years, owed
mainly to the increasing affordability and public acceptance of related
services. The Group believes its recent expansion plan will effectively
serve the rising demand for its services and enhance its market share.
The Group will also take advantage of its enlarging geographical
presence to attract new and more diverse customers.

Along with the strategic expansion of its medical aesthetic centre
network, the Group will also sharpen its competitive advantage by
strengthening product offerings and services. The Group is dedicated
to providing cutting-edge technology to help consumers beautify their
appearance and regain confidence. It is of utmost importance to
strictly and regularly inspect and test the devices and procedures
used by the Group to provide the best consumer experience as well
as meet safety standards.

The Group also endeavours to bolster its advantages by attracting
and retaining talents. It regularly reviews and adjusts employees’
salaries with reference to relevant labour market and economic
situations to ensure its staff delivers consistently competitive
performance. The Group also provides regular internal training
sessions and industry seminars to its doctors and therapists to keep
them up-to-date with the latest industry knowledge and trends.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Prospects (Continued)

Thus, the Group is confident of its capability to provide customers
with quality service from the heart. Moving forward, the Group will
apply its strengths, build on its solid customer base and good brand
reputation to deliver stable business development and generate
lucrative returns for shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEBZBERE

Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z37) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 46, is an executive Director, chairlady of the Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry. Mrs. Gigi Ma is the
sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry.

Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry (B E£), aged 52, is an executive Director
and our Group’s IT and business development director and is
principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s business expansion
and the development and maintenance of IT systems in relation to
our Group’s business operations. Mr. Ma was appointed as a Director
on 25 July 2016 and was re-designated as the executive Director on
19 December 2016.

Mr. Ma is actively involved in developing the IT infrastructure of the
Group, integrating different departments with the IT platforms, with a
view to enhance operation efficiency. He also performs a vital role in
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s business and strategic
planning.

Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Southern California with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science, with extensive
experience gained from oversea and in the Greater China region,
ranging from technical to the sales and marketing function of
multinational companies including companies from Fortune 500. He is
an entrepreneur with extensive experience in direct investments and
business development, bringing to the Group his sound know-how in
strategic planning. Mr. Ma is the brother-in-law of Mrs. Gigi Ma.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (ZR#§[El ), aged 69, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has
extensive experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance.
Mr. Cheng has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effective from 1 May 2014
and was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that
bank from June 2014 to June 2016. He is now the Honorary
Chairman of Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited. Credit Agricole
CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third parties
independent of the Company and not connected persons of the
Company. Mr. Cheng is a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, and a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board,
and he is the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations
Committee of the Maritime and Port Board. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (B #&i ), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is the
chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a member of
the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a member and fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since
December 1987 and August 1998 respectively and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
since January 1999, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada since November 1990. Mr. Cheng
has over 30 years of experience in auditing, finance and business
management. He has been the sole proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong since 1999.

Mr. Cheng also serves as a director of Chiu Chow Chamber of
Commerce, and Honorary Director of Hong Kong Rehabilitation
Power.

Mr. Cheng graduated from the University of Kent, England with a
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting in July 1983 and a Master’s degree
in Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics,
England in August 1984.

Mr. Cheng currently acts as an independent non-executive director of
a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely, CSI
Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), HKC (Holdings) Limited (Stock
Code: 190), C.P. Lotus Corporation (Stock Code: 121), Chong Hing
Bank Limited (Stock Code: 1111), Top Spring International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 194), Goldbond Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
172), Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839),
DTXS Sikk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
620), CPMC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8439) and Kidsland International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2122).

Mr. Cheng had acted as an independent non-executive director of
Imagi International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 585) during the
period between July 2010 and January 2016.
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Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{##£), aged 46, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Li has many years of experience in finance and investment
management. He has been the chief financial officer of Zhuhai
Dahengain Company Limited (Zk /& K#& Z % (5 A R A 7)), which is
principally engaged in primary land development, since December
2013. From March 2005 to September 2006, he worked for Esprit
Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (“Main Board”) (stock code: 330) and principally engaged
in retail and wholesale distribution of lifestyle products, and he served
as a vice president of operational finance and a vice president of
finance in Asia Pacific region from March 2005 to July 2006 and from
August 2006 to September 2006 respectively, and he was
responsible for finance and operational matters. From October 2006
to September 2010, he was a vice president of China Agri-Industries
Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board (stock code: 606)
and principally engaged in processing on agricultural products, and
he was responsible for finance and investment matters. He was a
managing director of COFCO Agricultural Investment Fund
Management Company Limited, which is principally engaged in asset
management, from September 2010 to October 2011, and he was
responsible for managing overall business and investment matters.
He was a managing director of Origo Partners Plc, whose shares are
listed on alternative investment market of the London Stock Exchange
and principal business is private equity investment, from November
2011 to January 2013, and he was responsible for investment
matters.

Mr. Li is an executive committee member and treasurer of the Hong
Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation since 2015 and
an executive director of the Certified Management Accountants
Australia Hong Kong Branch since 2016, a committee member of
Public Awareness Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial
Analysts since 2016, and a director of the board of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada — Hong Kong Chapter since
2017. Mr. Li was a member of the general committee and the
chairman of the investor relations committee of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010. He was appointed as an
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009. He was the chairman of the
partnership and promotion committee of the Hong Kong Investor
Relations Association from 2009 to 2010. He was a member of the
Organising Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010
organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He was a member
of finance committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012.
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Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree in November 1995. He further obtained a
master of business administration degree from York University in
Canada in November 1996. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the
Macau University of Science and Technology in 2016. He was
admitted as a certified member of the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada in October 2002. He became a chartered
financial analyst of the Association for Investment Management and
Research in September 2001 and a certified public accountant of the
HKICPA in October 2004. In addition, he was admitted as an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England and
Wales in June 2008, a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in April 2010, a chartered professional
accountant member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Canada in June 2015, and a fellow certified
management accountant of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016. He has been an independent non-
executive director of K W Nelson Interior Architect Group Limited
(stock code: 8411) since 18 November 2016, Enterprise Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) since 27 April 2017, China
Graphene Group Limited (stock code: 63) since 1 February 2018 and
TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) since 18 May
2018.

Senior Management

Ms. SHUM Ching Yee Jennifer (i & H), aged 49, has been the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group since September 2017. Ms. Shum
is primarily responsible for devising and supervising the execution of
business strategies in the long-term growth of the Group. Ms. Shum
is also responsible for overseeing the internal control system of the
Group in general and acts as the chief coordinator of matters relating
to legal, regulatory, and financial reporting compliance.

Ms. Shum is the member of the HKICPA and the CPA Australia. Ms.
Shum holds a Bachelor degree on Commerce (Accounting) from the
University of Western Australia. Ms. Shum has over 10 years of
experiences in financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Shum was the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary at
various companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
Singapore Stock Exchange.
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Ms. LAM Chi Wei Jullie (#fIE®), aged 43, joined the Group as
senior sales and operations manager in August 2012. She was then
promoted as the Director of Sales & Operations of the Group in April
2014. Ms. Lam is primarily responsible for formulating and
implementing sales strategies to drive the sales growth and achieving
sales targets for the Group.

Ms. Lam has more than 10 years of experience in sales and/or
marketing in the health and beauty industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Lam was a Centre Manager at Reenex Clinique Limited
and Reenex Medical Clinique Limited, medical aesthetic solutions
providers, from 2009 to 2012.

Ms. Lam obtained Bachelor of Business Administration from the
University of Management & Technology, Virginia, the United States in
September 2014. Ms. Lam also obtained a Diploma in Corporate
Training Professionals from Quality Tourism Services Association in
November 2013.

Ms. TSANG Chui Ying (&2 2#8), aged 34, joined the Group in
January 2012 and became the senior account manager in February
2014. She is now the financial controller of the Group. She is primarily
responsible for financial reporting and planning, treasury and financial
control. Ms. Tsang was admitted as a member of the HKICPA in
November 2009 and became fellow member of the HKICPA in March
2017.

Ms. Tsang graduated from the Lingnan University with a Bachelor
degree in Business Administration majoring in accounting in
November 20086. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Tsang was previously
employed by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2006 to
May 2010. She was then employed by Cargill Hong Kong Limited as
an accountant from May 2010 to January 2012.
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Corporate Governance Code

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recognise the importance of
achieving the highest standard of corporate governance consistent
with the needs and requirements of its businesses and the best
interest of all of its stakeholders, and the board of directors (the
“Board”) is fully committed to doing so. The Board believes that high
standards of corporate governance provide a framework and solid
foundation for the Group to manage business risks, enhance
transparency, achieve high standard of accountability and protect
stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
March 2018, the Company had complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code, except the deviation stipulated below.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in the
circumstances and currently does not propose to separate the
functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.
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Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors adopted by the Company during the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year Under Review”).

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the Year Under Review and up to the date of this report, the
composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David

Mr. Li Wai Kwan

The Board has complied with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules to have at least three independent non-executive directors who
represent more than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Board has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director (“INED”) a written annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 and 5.10 of the GEM Listing Rules, and the
nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
has assessed the independence of each INED and the Company
considers that each of their independence is in compliance with
5.05(1) and 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules as at the date
of this annual report. Each INED will inform the Company in writing as
soon as practicable if there is any change of circumstances which
may affect his independence.

Other than Mrs. Gigi Ma is the sister-in-law of Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry,
the Directors do not have financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 22 to 27 of this annual report.

Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As Mrs. Gigi
Ma has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer and sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi
Ma acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more
effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not
propose to separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive
officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for overall management, branding and strategic, planning,
marketing and development of our Group. She also is a member of
remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination Committee.
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Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s
approval before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.

Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual
results. Four regular board meetings were held during the year ended
31 March 2018 and the attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out on page 32 of this report. At the Board meeting
held on 31 May 2018, the Board has approved, among other matters,
the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the next Board
meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

BEEHMBETCEFTEER  HREFFLR
BE URTRELHESERHFE - IAESE
BEEZRRROFWER - ARWERBEFE
weEREE  UNaMAERARAIEEAE -&
FE-RNEFEERNRTAHNEL =
B REFTFEHAELIEE=S X - 80
EXERERCHUR eREE T —REFS
SREABER - ARBFEERH - UHEER
o BRCIKH A RMERE - MEHEACERIT
AREFRBAIEBANRI A S ILEE AR

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE T BITEERY
Audit Committee
Board Meeting Meeting
EEEER EREEEER
Executive Directors HITES

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi 2N+ 4/4 _
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry EREELE 4/4 _

Independent Non-Executive Directors BV E#EH{TES
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David 28 e [ 4 A 4/4 4/4
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BER M A 4/4 4/4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FTREEBLE 4/4 4/4

Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

There was no change in the composition of the Board during the Year
Under Review and up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the year ended 31
March 2018.

EEABLMBESERR

RATRSEFAAEESL2HEBEFTELREIILN
MEHHEEZ M#S R RN SEHETR
BEEEMRIEMENER THESSED
HEf - EEHERARRRBUTESHRER
20184 3 A 31 HILFE AL HEAIE TG 8% -

Nature of Trainings

I E
Type 1 Type 2
18 28

Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi BRI 2+ v
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry BEERE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors B E#{TE=
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo LGRS A& v 4
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David SR B 5 A 4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRELE v
Type of trainings: BEFIREY
1. Reading materials. 1. BB o
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars 2. IR g% w8 e g -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any
other topics, as authorised by the Board. The Board reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in order to
obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants, investigatory
services or other expert advice. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu
Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018 and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During to the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee had reviewed
with the Management and the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, internal controls, and financial reporting matters including
the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017;

° the review of the quarterly and interim results;

o the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 32 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code and the majority of
the members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs and
responsible to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Details of the authority and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2018 with the presence of all committee members
and approved the remuneration packages and performance bonuses
for the Directors and senior management of the Company.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the

HNEEE
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4T o

BECEEETAEBISE  RMEE20184

members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 3 A31 HIF FEEIRFEARE D 2 S REE A
March 2018 is set out below: BHMMETIAT -
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band 4R Bl AB
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T = 1,500,000 7T 1

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

HE2018F3A3IHILFE EE5 e
B H NIRRT

2018 F i / SRR EBER AT 35



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERRE

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the code provision A.5.2 of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee is responsible for, amongst
other things, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors and making recommendations to
the Board in respect of the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok
David and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of
the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 March 2018 with the presence of all committee members and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
concluded that members of the Board have possessed the expertise
and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.

For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.

36  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

RELRE®

EEgCRBOERATATABIFEASL2
I IRREZBRE  REFTEEMERE -
REZBEAE (HFEE)WEABARLE
EXeKE ZTEEBEEULRESHMIR
g U ERERAEFTSRLEBES - =
HEREEZBERBEFBRARR MM
A AT &R -

REZBEEEFE—RATES  HRIMK
T URMBBIIFRITES - BHHELE
RBGFMELE - BRYMAX L RIZREESR
o

REZE2018F3A3IHILEFE  RRZEE
BRIT-REH - SKEHELFE  REHE
FEYUEE RERERK  UTRAEZFEKE
BEEEENE LB O ABITES SR

oy

h ==
= o°

BEEEKELTTILBOR
EEEORMEFERES LB ETR
#)) BEERESERASTILNRE -

ARARRARERRIKEZTIENEZEIA
EREXBERNEE - TAEESNENE
EHARAES RRA - AEEBAEF SR
FREEER -

FENERZ R ZTRIBELEE AR
FRETRERR) MR - Fik - IEERBEE
= BELR 5 MR ERGES - &K
HIRAEBNRELA SESSRENERMME
RTE - AR A IR IRIEA & B0 R A Jo 2
BIENFERRZEEREREAER  WEEZE
BEFEXBZBMEs - EFRMAMKHE
ARARZFHRARE - EFEH RN EEAK
RUMEARBEEERNALTETESTSK

=
B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERBME

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The quarterly, interim and annual results of the
Company are announced in a timely manner within the limit of 45
days, 45 days and three months, respectively, after the end of the
relevant periods in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the Year Under Review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Ernst & Young is set out as follows:

Services rendered

BT B &
REEFER - BB TR HES
FizMeBFInT -

Fee paid/payable

FriR 4 AR 7% B ENEA
HK’000
FET
Audit services %8RS 880
Non-audit services IEL ERTE 472

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2018. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement
to the Audit Committee and management. The Board and Audit
Committee are of the view that there are no material internal control
defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are properly
followed up by the Group to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore considered that the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

[ B BE 5% I FE ¥R FPIE% T REH
R - AREREBEENABEER
Fr RMIEREREREBE - EF]ER
BEEBRLABELERF  RAEEE
EFeTHERRRERNER

) RREERAPEEGE 2 EZEEH
Ay

AEECHEERREF  SERBEE
TERBALERE: BRETHEBZX
B MARBE  MRZERE SRR
BRUATR AT SERT IS B R A N 7% i =X
NRER - BRBAEE L RFEER K
MARGER R HERERERL -
BARIMFFITARIEIERE

AR A BRI - MERNAREERS
R MERERNE  ERARE L EMSR

STEPR A B PR OB AL © AT - &
ATBEE—RISNE LR N DB
B ARFREHERHEEEEAKEY R
HEHT - R AR -

EERC TR M/ BEERBETCHERRE
BRAMEERTBER(BRD A8E =
2018 3ABI AL FENRAREE RANEE
PERGETFEERN - ZIERNTFETIRK
REBAEZ R BEFHCHEESSHIE]
REd - BB REZZEg hEEERERLE

RRFBRE EHBE EFTERERLZEER
= Iﬂ%ﬁikmﬁw¢ﬂ% REREKE
EREBENE % WIERNRAERMA
EEBAT - lm %$Em% [ B IR K A
HERFEAEMATRE -

2018 F i / SRR EBERAT 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERRE

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry has been appointed as the compliance officer
of our Company. His biographical details are set out in section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this report.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 25
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the Year Under Review, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advisory to the
Group on corporate governance matters. Ms. Tsang Chui Ying, our
financial controller, is the person who Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.
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Shareholders’ Right
Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for
shareholder of the Company to propose a person for election as
director is posted on the Company’s website.
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Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the compliance officer by post at Room
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The compliance officer shall forward the
Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant
Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond to
the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of quarterly, interim and
annual results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. At the annual general meeting held
in 2017, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate, including re-election of directors and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the GEM Listing Rules. The respective
chairman of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee had attended the annual general meeting
held in 2017 to ensure effective communication with shareholders. All
the Directors had attended the annual general meeting held in 2017.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the Year Under Review, no amendments were
made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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About this Report

Preparation Basis and Scope

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its second
annual Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report,
demonstrating our continuous commitment to corporate social
responsibility. This Report has been prepared in accordance with
ESG Reporting Guide set out by Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules and has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions. This
Report covers the sustainability performance and initiatives of the
Group in respect of corporate social responsibility during the reporting
period, covering the Group’s core businesses — the provision of
medical aesthetic services, and the sale of skin care products in Hong
Kong. This Report shall be published both in Chinese and English.
Should there be any discrepancy between the Chinese and the
English versions, the English version shall prevail.

Unless otherwise stated, this Report covers the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018 (“reporting period”). It includes disclosure of
significant environmental and social impacts of our operation in Hong
Kong.

Introduction

The Group is a medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong and
operates three medical aesthetic centres in the prime locations of
Causeway Bay and Central District under our brand “CosMax”. We
offer a broad range of non-surgical medical aesthetic services and
skin care products to our clients with an aim to improve their skin
conditions as well as to enhance their physical appearance.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development.
Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order to achieve
business excellence and enhance long-term competitiveness. The
Group has established and implemented various policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment, operating
practices and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this
Report.
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Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to our business and established various channels for

R B2 R
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FEUEARE T HEERLEE - AKECDRER
ZHEEFD
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communication.

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures

B E HE SERE Ei=i

Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes

proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B BPEAPIRZEFNTIE BAMEK  HEGEKE BREEOIRAMKE - BB RENH

Shareholders and
Investors

BRMEE

Employees

il
il

e

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

RERWERHSERE
LA Be R B B SR ) B )

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HEFZE2MNEENTIFS
B BRFPEREUARE

FHEEE

Annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports
and announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder

meetings

Fil - WHARE - FER
ERRE
BRERBF ARG M EAMAR
g

Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion

Bk ERE EERE
ST 58 i3 0N
R
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Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
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Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.
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Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

B EXE (8)

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
BHE e SHERE it
Customers Provide safe, high-quality =~ Customer satisfaction Strengthened quality management to
products and services to  surveys, customer ensure safety, high quality production and
customers feedback activities, day to  communicate with customers to improve
day operations/ quality of services.
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
S AEPRELZE  BEE FPRERADT TPRE NREEEEURRZ:  BE4EE-
an N2 AR 7% EE) - BEEE B TEREPBBUNSEREEE -
R 75 % 2 G 1% o % [B] e 1
il
Environmental Aspects RIBEM
Emission BB

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emission (Continued)

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Qualified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 90.63 kg.

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The Group
manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy consumption
and water consumptions as these activities cause significant emission
of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures adopted on resources
saving are mentioned in the section “Use of resources” of this Report.

Major air pollutants emission from vehicles during the reporting period
as follows:

RIBEE (#)
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RELBE(LEMBRBE - B EME N FT R
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BEAMADKARBKRNERENEEER
90.63 F % °
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Air Pollutant Emission ZERTRMBEK
Air Pollutant Emission ERSEMENRE
Type of Air Pollutants (kg) ZEREFRYER (F=)
Sulphur Dioxide 0.03 —&tm 0.03
Nitrogen Oxides 0.98 REY 0.98
Particulate Matter 0.07 BIZ R T 0.07
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emission (Continued)

During the reporting period, the GHG emission from the operation is
set out below:

IRIZEEME &)

By ()

R AR - B A KR SR B R
mE

GHG Emission BERBEIRY

Equivalent CO2 emission —EtmEEHER
Type of GHG emissions (kg) BERBHERYER (F%=)
Scope 1 Direct emissions 6,282.24 EE1 BN 6,282.24
Scope 2 Indirect emission 137,100.62 &5 [E 2 M BEN 137,100.62
Total 143,382.86  #4%t 143,382.86
Intensity 84.60 kg/m? 84.60 F 5 “F 77K
Note: PREE -

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol.

Scope 1:  Direct emission from vehicles that are owned by the Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by

the Group

Scope 3: is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the corresponding emission

is not controlled by the Group

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period is set
out below:

Energy Consumption
Energy consumed

Type of energy (kWh)
Unleaded Petrol 20,622.16
Purchased electricity 173,545.09
Total 194,167.25

Energy intensity 114.56 KWh/m?
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper. (eg. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 1,176 kg.

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the reporting period, the
total consumption of the water and water intensity per office area is
259.64 m® and 0.15 m%/m?2, respectively.

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set at energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle mode is 20 minutes or less. The
room temperature should be set within the range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, unnecessary
lighting and power supply should be switched off when they are not
in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material
The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
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and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the — Jff « AIREEART « ZEMKIHSYEMMNT -
reporting period is summarized below.

Packaging Material Consumption BEMBERE
Packaging material Amount (lbs) aEHE HEEE (B8)
Paper 2,221.34 4K ok 2,221.34
Plastic bottle 12,196.72 RN 12,196.72
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in session
“Emission” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and there was no related
work injuries or fatalities and no legal case regarding health and safety
brought against the Group.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Our trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We have also established our own training centre
(CosMax Academy) to strengthen the quality of our trainings offered
to our staff. We are of the view that the ability to keep abreast of the
latest trend in medical aesthetic services and to offer quality
service will impact our client traffic, revenue growth and financial
performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded the status of “Manpower
Developer” under the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme
2015-16" for two years from April 2016 to March 2018 by the
Employees Retraining Board in 2016.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Labour Standard

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 and did not violated any relevant labour laws
and regulations including child and forced labour laws and
regulations.

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; and (iv) our internal test results. The
approval of our Chief Executive Officer and doctors must be obtained
before we procure a new treatment device.

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by distributors and
manufacturers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. The
countries of origin of our skin care products include the United States,
[taly and France. We select and source skin care products carefully
based on factors such as the suppliers’ background, credentials and
reputation, product quality and cost. The approval of our Chief
Executive Officer and doctors must be obtained before we take in any
new product for sale.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high-
quality. We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety
standards, as well as those governing testing, advertising and
labeling. The Group was in strict compliance with related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance,
Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety
Regulation during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers
to have confidence in our products and services, and sufficient
information to make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set
of policies and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.
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RS- HERERBRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well-
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to
programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$46,000 during the reporting period (2017: HK$151,000).

56  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

e

R EIE (E)

RES (&)
AEEBAREREHEREDRRPINEE -
BEREWRIE o Al RAEBREB S
PN Z BT AT E RIS T -
MR BREE T EHERNAELE
W ERE FEH T SRS = ERRMK
REBMALEE B Z o BRMAUEASR
BH & H2RIMETRBATEEE - RFAE
B EHTEEMTE U EBRMEAE
EEoLE R

BT LGRBE FEM R L AISEHP RN -

HeRE - —RKERNER - HRAASKSHR
R FE - AEEKETIERARRAE
S EMEERE - A REESE ST LR
B R|EHE - A RELEEELIRE
HEBTAMESEREREM -

HE

ER—BEITHEEENAF  AREHNT
BEMEBAELROFR - ARERRT
[MEEREREK] §EEY —EHFE ZMRNUNE
EABMRKENES - AREIKERDE
BV RHREE  YRNRTEBRRGERIEER
EWRBELER -

RBEPHE AEENEEREMBRA
46,0008 7T (2017 £F : 151,000/ 7T) °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s ERHBAERZIARARANIRIE
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting e kERREED

Guide

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE EH —REERBEEERIEE =68 B

A. Environmental

25

Aspects A1: Emission

[EMEAT : HER)
General Disclosure “Emission” 45-47
—R R [HEm ]

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emission” 46

FARERIEE  BEER KA BN EUR [HEm ]

A1.1

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, “Emission” 47
intensity

MRERIER ARERBEIIMER(WER)EE Ez13:67/0

Al1.2

KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, The group generated no -
intensity significant hazardous waste

during the reporting period

BRENIEER MELEEEEVHEER(WER)EE REBRHERRELEEE

A1.3 BERBEEREED

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, “Use of Resources 48
intensity — Paper Saving”

BRENIER MESREEEVESK(WER)BE [BREA — A A4

Al.4

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results “Use of Resources” 47-48
achieved

FRESUER RIEPENE RS IE R TS R Ay HE [ &R

A1.5
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (Continued)
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HER
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] B

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emission” 45-47
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

BRGEVIEER REBETLEZTEEVRE  RHHEREAIFR RO [HER

A1.6

Aspects A2: Use of Resources

[BEA2 : BIREA
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 47-49
—MRIKER [ &R

KPI' A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total “Use of Resources” 47

BRBESIER RERAESHNEE KERERERS [ &R

A2.1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources” 48

BREIER BREKERTE [ &R

A2.2

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources” 47-48
achieved

BREDIER AR AR 8 R 1SA R At [ &R

A2.3

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that “Use of Resources” 48
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

BRERIER SREGERKR ERERRBE - ARRRKS &S R AE [ &R

A2.4 B SR A st

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if “Use of Resources” 48
applicable, with reference to per unit produced

MRERIER ®HEoMASEVHNEER (WER)BEESILE [ &R

A2.5
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Guide (Continued)
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
FTEHE  EE - —REERBRENEE == B
Aspects A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[EMAS : RIERRKAEIR
General Disclosure “The Environmental and 49
Natural Resources”
— = [IREBERRAEIR]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the “Emission” & 45-49
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to “Use of Resources”
manage them
BRESIER EBEDHRERARAERNEAFENCHNEEEHT [Hemn] K T&IRERA
A3.1 L TE R
B.  Social (Note a)
g (Miska)
Aspects B1: Employment and Labour Practices
BEB1 : EREEETER
General Disclosure “Employment” 49-50
— = [EfE]
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these
indicators.
BRENMUER MR BEEA - FicER R EEI D MR B BH REB BRI ERZE TEA
B1.1 EEERHEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these
indicators.
BRENMUER RN FiRERMEE D REE MR E AEB BRI ERZE TEA
B1.2 EEERHEE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHE EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] B
Aspects B2: Health and safety
BEB2 : EEZE
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 50
— MR [MfERREEZ 2 |
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities 50
BRENER FEAIEERERMILTHAB KL E ERTERERSE
B2.1 SET =M
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury No case of work injuries 50
MREIIEER BEIBEAMNIEEH T5EZ
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures The Group currently does N/A
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored not report on this indicator
BRGENIER FIERANBERRET2EE  UARBERTRERTEN AEEBATERZESR TER
B2.3 et fEH¥RE
Aspects B3: Development and Training
[EMEBS : =Tl
General Disclosure “Development and Training” 51
—R R [z R
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category The Group currently does N/A
not report on these
indicators
BARENER XIEEBES L RESET REBE BRI ERZE  TEA
B3.1 EREL®RE
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  The Group currently does N/A
and employee category not report on these
indicators.
BREDIER RURNREBREMNES  BRESTHZINTHERE REBE BRI ERZE  TEA
B3.2 EIREL®RE -
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
Aspects B4: Labour Standard
EHEB4 : 25 T AR
General Disclosure “Labour Standard” 52
— MR [T
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “Labour Standard” 52
avoid child and forced labour
BRGENIER W R E DI AR o B T N oR 85 TR HE st [ 45 T8 |
B4.1
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standard” 52
discovered
BRENIER  EERREMRBENRERRE BB AT 2 5 a0t [45 T8 |
B4.2
Aspects B5: Supply Chain Management
EHEBS : HrEgEEs
General Disclosure “Supply Chain 52-53
Management”
—MRIKER [ e E IR |
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region The Group currently does N/A
not report on this indicator
BRENIER RIS HHEEREE REBE AT ERZESR  TEA
B5.1 e S
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number “Supply Chain 52-53
of supplies where the practices are being implemented, how Management”
they are implemented and monitored
MRERIEER FHREAHERNEN  RERTEREMNEEREE [ E IR |
B5.2 AR B RAE O TT & B A m
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHE EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] B
Aspects B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEBG EmEE
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 54-55
— R [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ The Group currently does N/A
for safety and health reasons not report on these
indicators
FRENIER CDEICEXERAEFRL2EREEIEAmMARNKNE D REB BRI ERZE  TEA
B6.1 Lt BRELRE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received The Group currently does N/A
and how they are dealt with not report on these
indicators
FRBENIER BEEERERRREORFERE AREYH A REB BRI ENZE  TEA
B6.2 BRELRE
KPI B6.3 Description and practices relating to observing and protecting The Group currently does N/A
intellectual property rights not report on these
indicators
BB NIETR AR RIS MG E A B A e KRB 1 REBE BRI ERZE  TEA
B6.3 BRELRE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility 54-55
— Quality Assurance”
BRESIER  EERTEREREmBYIE F Rt [EREL — EERE]
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of customer data information protection and “Product Responsibility 55
privacy policies, how they are implemented and monitored — Customer Data
Information Protection”
FRETIEER TPEBEMNRERLBEE  UARMEERITRERFEN [EmREE —
B6.5 et B EUIRERHRE]
Aspects B7: Anti-corruption
[EEBT : R&ES
General Disclosure “Anti-Corruption” 55-56

—fRINER
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHE B —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices No concluded cases 56
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the case

BRBEOIER RREPREBETASEREERETEEENE THARNY BmOBERMN

B7.1 HH KA

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing “Anti-Corruption” 55-56
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

FRERIEER  PhEiEm R EmIRT - AT RER AN [REF]

B7.2

Aspects B8: Community Investment

[ B8 : HEREE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 56
—MRIKER [ttERRE ]

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 56
concemns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)

FRENIER ZIERNSE (WHE  RERE - BB HFR - 2F - [TtRigE ]

B8.1 Xk - 85)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area “Community Investment” 56

MRERIER CHIHBMHANER (NS ERERE) [TtRIgE ]

B8.2

Note: FsE -

() Pursuant to Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are (@)
recommended disclosures only.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 January 2017.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8 to 21 of
this annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
All of our business operations are based in and we derive all of our
revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the demand
for our medical aesthetic services are therefore subject to the
economic, social and political conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore,
any incidence of social unrest, strike, riot, civil disturbance or
disobedience in Hong Kong may cause inconvenience to clients who
wish to visit our medical aesthetic centres and weaken their desire or
willingness to undergo medical aesthetic treatments. Any of the
above circumstances may have a material and adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, during the year, a portion of our revenue was derived from
visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong Kong.
Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors and
tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and tourists
to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may significantly
reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 43 to 63 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
85 of this annual report.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 21 September 2018. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.
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Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 18
September 2018 to Friday, 21 September 2018, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 17 September 2018.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on page 152. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2018, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$54,083,000
(2017: HK$52,998,000).

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$46,000 (2017: HK$151,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2018.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. LAI Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. LI Wai Kwan
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By virtue of articles 83(3) and 84 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. CHEUNG Yuk Wo and Mr. LI Wai Kwan will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board considers them to be
independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years commencing from the
date of the Listing and continuing thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the
other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from the date of the
Listing, provided that either the Company or the INEDs may terminate
such appointment at any time by giving at least three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$1,117,000 (2017: HK$865,000) for the year ended
31 March 2018.

70 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

BEEHMRANGRSHHATHFED AIER
REMSIREMITE7 X8 o

EERNRS - RHHNAEORER

if

MRAFERIEHFAERRE  ARREEK
HEEERYEERENRENARR - HER

KL S T RA DT EAMNS -

BREFET S

BRARIE SR B M AT 5T &8RPI LR FIEATE
EZETEIN  AEEAESE R BRI EMEAM

BIRRHMETE ©

AEBRBEARFELBEEFT BN RABEE
EBIE-REBHFBESRAEMNTE ([81E
&) - HRDREEBEAFHENETED
FofEH - WS SR AIENR 18
@k - BESFIMNEENBLEEESE
AEBENEEDFRFEE - ARENEEHEZIR
FRESTEERAS 2 HEEBRES -

AEENEHE2018FE3 AN HIEFEELD
RRAEMETEIH A 1,117,000 7T (2017 4 -
865,000787T) °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 22 to 27 of the annual report.

Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2018, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in any
businesses or companies that were or might be directly or indirectly
competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to any
concern regarding conflict of interest.
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Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2018, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:

e
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MR2018F3A31H  ARABEERFETH
ABRAREREMEEEZE (ERRFSH R
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EIEPIEXVERSE 7 R 8D BT AR RER
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a. REQRRDGHFE:

Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
KATE BT

BEEHE B Rt R #E RAMNBE DL
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) Interest of a controlled 300,000,000 75%

oorporation (Note 1)

R+ ([FRMmLL]) =B R (1)
Note:
1. Such 300,000,000 shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr.
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs.
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Sunny Bright
under the SFO.
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. REBEEROHNFE

Percentage of

the Company’s
Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued
Name of Director corporation interest shares held  share capital
AT E BT
EEpgE sk Y B REnttE FEROEE BRENEIL
Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%
interest of spouse
BRI+ ¥ EnEE AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of
the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2018, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company:

T ERRRA R BIRD AR
2R R TORR

M20184F3 A31 B » IIBEGEH K HEAEEHI)
F336IKATFE 2B MATREE - TIAL(R
NEIBZRHRSTRABRIN KA REAE
WECABINT ¢

HEFRME  N2018F3A3A BEER
ARBRBITHRAEIN - THAL EERAK
NERBD AR PR A RIBES ME
fERPIZEXV BB 26 2 %2 373 BR A A AN B BB AR
IRE S N HE R 336 IRFTHIE  ZRAC8riE
ZIGPIFTE AR R B B CM AR EDIOR R I
T

RAERTRGIEE :

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

shares held/

issued

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
S 2] AABE BT

W/ EB B HntE EZROHE RAMNBE DL

Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 300,000,000 75%

S En#aA

Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

and interest of spouse (Note 1)

BiEoakst Ry EE s R B (HEE1)

CSI Capital Management Limited Beneficial Owner 20,000,000 5%
BEmEAA

CITIC Securities International Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%

Company Limited (Note 2)
FEILHEBEER AR RyEshEERRERE (HE2)
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%

(Note 3)

RIEEFBRNBR QA R HLAE S (HFE3)
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Notes:

1. Such 300,000,000 shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company
beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.

2. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited, a company wholly owned by CITIC Securities International Company
Limited. Accordingly, CITIC Securities International Company Limited is deemed
to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares under the SFO.

3. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited. As stated in Note 2 above, CITIC Securities International Company
Limited is deemed to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares under the SFO.
CITIC Securities International Company Limited is wholly owned by CITIC
Securities Company Limited. Accordingly, by virtue of the SFO, CITIC Securities
Company Limited is deemed to be interested in all such 20,000,000 shares to
which CITIC Securities International Company Limited is deemed to be interested
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was less than 1.1%
(2017: 1.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 18.1% (2017: 27.5%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2018, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 55.3%
(2017: 71.4%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.

Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There are no other non-exempt connected and continuing connected
transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the GEM Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As at 31 March 2018, as notified by the Company’s compliance adviser,
Shenwan Hongyuan Capital (H.K.) Limited (the “Compliance Advisor”),
except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between the
Company and the Compliance Adviser dated 23 December 2016,
neither the Compliance Adviser nor any of its directors, employees or
close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interest in the Group which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is
not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.
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The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
28 to 42 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period

There was no significant event occurred after the reporting period.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAI Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 May 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 85 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

RREESEE

ARz EIE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREFT TR NAEEEN

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages

K E AR AEHFENBIE 2 YW 7t T3k

Prepaid medical aesthetic services not yet rendered are
deferred and reported as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Upon expiry
of the service period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid
packages are fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31
March 2018, the carrying amount of deferred revenue
amounted to HK$93,414,000, which represented
approximately 88% of the Group’s total liabilities. During
the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue recognised from
unutilised prepaid packages amounted to HK$2,359,000.

The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of
the expired prepaid packages involves significant
management’s judgement to determine the appropriate
timing when the obligations to provide services are
considered to be expired based on the Group’s forfeiture

policy.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3, 5 and 21
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included:

° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;
and

° testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of revenue recognised related to the
unutilised portion of the expired prepaid packages
by examining the underlying sales contracts and
related records on a sampling basis.
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yen Kai Shun, Catherine.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

31 May 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEEsREMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BZE20184 331 HIEFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B EE FET FHEIT
REVENUE A 5 127,213 100,104
Other income and gain, net E YA K s 5 R 5 1,352 1,083
Cost of inventories and consumables FEMEFERKA (13,018) (9,768)
Staff costs BB (46,875) (39,341)
Property rentals and related expenses WEHe KEBERS (12,359) (9,904)
Depreciation e (6,953) (6,228)
Other expenses Hipp (17,903) (32,437)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT F 6 31,457 3,509
Income tax expense SRS 9 (4,944) (3,450)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND RATEBAEML
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME EEBF
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EEEZEKA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 4z 26,513 59
EARNINGS PER SHARE EAFEBERES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY B8 AEWL
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY &RZEF
— Basic and diluted — ER RS 11 HKG6.63 cents HKO0.02 cents
6.63 & 0.02 /&1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E B AR R &
As at 31 March 2018
M20184F 3 H31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P FET FE&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E R Y 12 16,340 14,016
Goodwill GES 13 4,305 4,305
Deposits YEEY 16 7,445 4,980
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 23 889 835
Total non-current assets EREEERE 28,979 24,136
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories & 14 4,219 1,704
Trade receivables Z S El R IE 15 20,169 852
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE - ek
other receivables H At e FIR 16 7,242 4,391
Tax recoverable Al Y [B] 7 18 556 843
Pledged time deposits BIIREEFER 18 51,827 3,253
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MESEEY 18 110,379 135,444
Total current assets MEVEELRE 194,392 146,487
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B SR 19 705 887
Other payables and accruals H e3R8 L EETE A 20 6,383 6,730
Deferred revenue PRI W e 21 93,414 68,717
Provision for reinstatement costs {E1E K 2B 5 22 497 877
Tax payable FERTTRIE 2,354 537
Total current liabilities mBAERE 103,353 77,748
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 91,039 68,739
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHAEBERRS
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R 120,018 92,875
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBARRE

As at 31 March 2018
MR2018F 3 A31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B aE FHET FHIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRnBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAE 23 1,385 1,355
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E A 22 1,530 930
Total non-current liabilities EREEERE 2,915 2,285
Net assets BEFE 117,103 90,590

EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR 24 4,000 4,000
Reserves s 26 113,103 86,590
Total equity Ez=BE 117,103 90,590
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry
BT L+ BERKE
Director Director
g EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZE2018F 3 A1 HILFE

Share
Issued  premium Merger  Retained Total
capital  account reserve profits equity
BET [0} &bt =8 g
[ HER i gl b
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FAET FAET FAET FAET FET
(Note 26)
(Fi3E26)
At 1 April 2016 R2016F 4 A1H - - 5,000 13,748 18,748
Profit for the year and FERNEEE
total comprehensive income FHERA B
for the year - - - 59 59
Issue of shares pursuant to REEEHTRNG
the Reorganisation 24(c) 3,000 (3,000) - - -
Issue of shares under initial BEERRREE
public offering BTG 24(d) 1,000 79,000 - - 80,000
Share issue expenses BIIRNER - (8,212) - - (8,212)
Consideration paid for EER BB AR
acquisition of subsidiaries in ERMRE
the Reorganisation - - () - ()
At 31 March 2017 and 2017537318 K
1 April 2017 2017F481H 4,000 67,788* 4,995* 13,807* 90,590
Profit for the year and total FERAREE
comprehensive income for TEHBALE
the year - - - 26,513 26,513
At 31 March 2018 ®2018F3 A31H 4,000 67,788* 4,995* 40,320+ 117,103

*

* RERBEFEBEGRAMBHANER 2GS BE
118,103,000 7T (2017 4F : 86,590,000/ 7T) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$113,103,000
(2017: HK$86,590,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZE2018F 3 A31 HIEFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B B e A 31,457 3,509
Adjustments for: YR IR -
Depreciation e 6 6,953 6,228
Interest income LB A 5 (1,263) (2471)
Forfeiture of deposits BYIR S 6 = 2,950
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HEMEME  BE
items of property, plant and MEEEEBE (k)
equipment, net HER 6 (46) 15
37,101 12,461
Increase in inventories FEEm (2,515) 8)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables  JEIE 5 BR ORI (3& ) (19,317) 338
Increase in prepayments, AR - me REMEIR
deposits and other receivables BR FRIE A0 (3,089) (4,519)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JERTE S BRFRIE M, CRd) (182) 160
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEmpE RSN ESTER
and accruals g, Cld) (347) 3,346
Increase in deferred revenue R FE U 25 32 0 24,697 11,329
Decrease in the amount due from JE UK B 4RI A% A A
the ultimate holding company TR = 5
Decrease in amounts due FE UL B R 5 SRR
from related parties - 24,518
Decrease/(increase) in pledged time BRI E R ROR L (35 n)
deposits (48,574) 196
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #& &2 E4 (B HIRS (12,226) 47,826
Interest received BURERFI B 832 241
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net B EEFEEFRE (2,864) (4,7695)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & & 8L,/ (FrA) B
activities REMEFRE (14,258) 43,302
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBNERERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWME  WENKE
plant and equipment HE (9,048) (6,399)
Deposits paid for the purchase of items ~ EEE W% - HENREER S
of property, plant and equipment BftiEe (1,819) (2,497)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEYE - BB KEE
property, plant and equipment HE SR 60 -
Consideration paid for acquisition of R B4R B A A
subsidiaries in the Reorganisation BERHRE = (%)
Increase in non-pledged time deposits A EE AR R HiRE =18 A
with original maturity of more than 2 AR T BATE S N
three months when acquired (32,470) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities 1% & & AMIR S e F 5 (43,277) (8,897)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ho -~ —1
mEEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FERT FHEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHNRS
ACTIVITIES ME
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS B 24(d) - 80,000
Share issue expenses BITRHER = (8,212)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHELANRE S RE 55 - 71,788
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReRASEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B, CRd) F8 (57,535) 106,193
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#] 714 RIREEEY
of year 135,444 29,251
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XzRERRELZEY
END OF YEAR 77,909 135,444
ANALYSIS OF BALANCESOF CASH HB&RELZENETE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS pdyiy
Cash and bank balances Re NIRTETF 38,698 25,903
Non-pledged time deposits with original — #BE AR E|Ef H
maturity of less than three months TEBB=MAZ
when acquired AR E BRI 5K 39,211 109,541
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 8 A B R | 21 B
maturity of more than three months A=Az
when acquired T HER 32,470 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RE P BARR TS
in the consolidated statement of RERIREEEY
financial position 18 110,379 135,444
Non-pledged time deposits with original g A B[R E| Hf B
maturity of more than three months BE=EAz
when acquired I E R (32,470) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HMEBReRERMINEE X
in the consolidated statement of HeEEY
cash flows 77,909 135,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information 1. ANaREEER

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability ARAA—HERSHSTMRIHNE
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office BEARAT c KRR FMHII =R
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. i & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Box 2681 » Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 -
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room Cayman Islands © N A RI A = 2 & ¥ i
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road, B A BB RSB 77 SRS EAR O
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. 16121605 = °

The Company is an investment holding company and the KRR BEREER AT MARE B
Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in the NEETERNEENRBIRHEBEARI
provision of medical aesthetic services, and the sale of skin care MHEEBEMR -

products in Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company EFERALE ARAHNEEBEERA R K&
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny IR AR AXRIZERER AT (—HER
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the REREZEEFMKIHRR) -

British Virgin Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of The RAFMHDF2017F1 10 HEER BB
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) ERGHABMR AR ([HRFT])GEM £
on 10 January 2017 (the “Listing”). (TEm]) -

Information about subsidiaries B B 2 5] 2 & ¥

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ARBEBHWBARZFFBOT :
follow:

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREERER D
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A E R BRI
A8 =ES ik EBRRE ¢ MiE TEEER
Coresmax Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited ("BVI")
EERIHES 17T RERER
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
EERIHES 17T REER
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of management
services
B 187 RUEERRY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continuea) 1. REIREBEER (®)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARIZER (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

RAREEREBDH
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
A E R BT
B X EBERRA EE Mg TEER
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
EPES (BH)ERDA B 18T HEEEER
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUEBSBZTRHG
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUEBSBZTRHG
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T RUEBSBZTRHG
CM Technology Development  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services
B 18T RHEERS
CMIP Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
HERRAF] EBRAHE 1% BIREAA
Cos Max Academy Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 18T RHEERS
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100 Inactive
(TST) Limited
B 300,000/ 7T BEB

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.1 Reorganisation and Basis of Presentation 2.1 HEAHEKNEYELE

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in connection
with the Listing (the “Reorganisation”), the Company became
the holding company of the companies now comprising the
Group on 13 September 2016. The companies now comprising
the Group were under the common control of Sunny Bright
Group Holdings Limited (the “Controlling Shareholder”), the
ultimate holding company of the Company, before and after the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, these financial statements have
been prepared by applying the principles of merger accounting
as if the Reorganisation had been completed at the beginning
of the earliest period presented. Details of the Reorganisation
are set out in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and
Corporate Structure — Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 include the results
and cash flows of all companies now comprising the Group
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
subsidiaries and/or business first came under the common
control of the Controlling Shareholder, where this is a shorter
period.

BEEAQNAEMBEBENEA(E
1) ARER2016F9 A13 AR AR
EEBERETARNZERAR - REA
A& AEBEKETATRRAZ AT
ERAR AR ([FERARR]) (KRR RA&
IRERR AT S o Bt - MBmER TR
AEHEEREVEASMHETRAR
& BUNEARKF 2V HBEBRYIE T
Ko BASHENFBEENARRBER
2016F 12 H30O HMHBRER [EL - &
WM ATIEEE — =8 —F o

REBREZE2017F3 A31HIEFEN
RABEREMEEREER  RAEE
SHERLGEREREXRDEAEERR
KIETHBARERTE RS HERENKE
MIEB AR &Sk BRI AR R 3
EE 6 B HILA R (ARG B A %) %
BERRERE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.2 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2.2 WMBIEE ()

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

REEEE)

o8 A A 2 M R Ty AR A R A
ZHEHARA B2 A HERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
included in Annual Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement?
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28"

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below. Of those
standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the
Group’s financial year ending 31 March 2019 and are expected
to have certain impact upon adoption. Whilst management has
performed an assessment of the estimated impacts of these
standards, that assessment is based on the information
currently available to the Group. The actual impacts upon
adoption could be different to those below, depending on
additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group at the time of applying the standards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
April 2018. The Group will not restate comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group has performed an
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The
expected impacts relate to the classification and measurement
and the impairment requirements and are summarised as
follows:

(@) Classification and measurement
The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9
will have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under
HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected credit
loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and
record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based
on the present values of all cash shortfalls over the
remaining life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore,
the Group will apply the general approach and record
twelve-month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its other
receivables within the next twelve months. The Group has
determined that, due to the unsecured nature of its trade
and other receivables, the provision for impairment may
increase upon the initial adoption of the standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.4 EREMERAKRER 2 EBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective adoption is required on
the initial application of the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits at 1 April 2018. In addition, the
Group plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts
that are not completed before 1 April 2018. The Group expects
that the transitional adjustment to be made on 1 April 2018
upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 may not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies, as
further explained below, may have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 1 April 2018 onwards. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group has performed an
assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
The Group’s principal activities consist of the provision of
medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care products in
Hong Kong. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of
HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as follows:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition for sale of

treatment packages

Based on the Group’s current accounting policy, revenue
from the rendering of services is recognised when the
services have been rendered to clients. Receipts in
respect of unutilised prepaid packages for which the
relevant services have not been rendered are deferred
and recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Any unutilised prepaid
packages upon expiry of the service period are fully
recognised in profit or loss.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, such unutilised prepaid
packages are referred to as breakage. An expected
breakage amount will be determined based on the
Group’s historical experience and will be recognised as
revenue in proportion to the pattern of prepaid packages
utilised by the customers.

(b) Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer, which represent sales commission and
bonuses paid or payable to doctors and staff, will be
recognised as deferred costs in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Such costs will be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
deferred revenue to which they relate is recognised as
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(c)

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS
15 are more detailed than those under the current HKAS
18. The presentation requirements represent a significant
change from current practice and will significantly increase
the volume of disclosures required in the Group’s financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that the
impact of some of these disclosure requirements will be
significant. In particular, the Group expects that the notes
to the financial statements will be expanded because of
the disclosure of significant judgements made on
determining the transaction prices of those contracts that
include variable consideration, how the transaction prices
have been allocated to the performance obligations, and
the assumptions made to estimate the stand-alone selling
price of each performance obligation. In addition, as
required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate
revenue recognised from contracts with customers into
categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. It will also disclose information about
the relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated
revenue and revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.4 ERMEBRARER BB

ES

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a
class of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise the
interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting
under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using
the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
16 from 1 April 2019. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether
it will choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be
adopted. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, at
31 March 2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately HK$33,687,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16,
certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised as
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights
of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including,
but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short term leases, other practical expedients and
reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into before the date of
adoption.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FEETHERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations other than those under common control
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date
fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FEETTHERE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTTHEME @

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESHBEBRE @)
(Continued)
Related parties BES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: WEMALRFE U T RGBSR
RAE )T
(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ ABBEATZATHMALTSHTAETH
family and that person TIrEREE -
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEEEAEHERE
PRI RE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEEEBEATZE
%
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy AEREEIEREEZREN
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or FEEEBAE 3
(o)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) BEALAEFEUTEAEGEZE
applies: G
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEAEELRFA-—5H
group; ojpd=WNCIIE
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy ZEBRSMHEB(HS—
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow FMEENSERE - WEAQF
subsidiary of the other entity); BACEYAIEEPNGIDE: ) NG|
REEPE
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy ZERBOAAEEAER —F=
same third party; FREEE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy ZEBRBE=ZFTHNEED
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MR —EBRAZELE=
palioli NS
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZERAAEBSAEEHR
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EEBMNEBS RN ZIEIRE
related to the Group; FETEIFR R —7
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) .:Z%“%j'f“‘( ) B BTl A 4%
person identified in (a); HEEH
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (Vi) (@OEEFTIl 2 A THZEE
over the entity or is a member of the key HBEERZ ’.i.“?‘] NEZER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (ZBEERTAR)NTES
of the entity); and BAE K
(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (i) ZERNKEMBER ZTW
part, provides key management personnel services KE MAEESHAERZ
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. NFIRME T EEIEBRG o

106 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTTHEME @

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:
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Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the MEMERE 1R EAZ20% + A

lease terms and 20% EPALLEE
R

Furniture and fixtures 20% RERKEE 20%

Treatment devices 20% BEERE 20%

Tools and equipment 25% THKEE 25%

Office equipment 20% WAERME 20%

Motor vehicles 20% b 20%

Computer equipment 20% BISRRE 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are all classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation and the loss arising from impairment are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTHEME @

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTTHEME @

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs of disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FEETTHERE @)

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered to clients. Receipts in respect of unutilised
prepaid packages for which the relevant services have not
been rendered are deferred and recognised as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Any unutilised prepaid packages upon expiry of
the service period are fully recognised in profit or loss;

(i)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the clients,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(i)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 25 FESTTHEME @

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.
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HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of the
expired prepaid packages involves significant management’s
judgement to determine the appropriate timing when the
obligations to provide services are considered to be expired
based on the Group’s forfeiture policy and hence the
recognition criteria for the related revenue are met in
accordance with the accounting policy for revenue recognition
in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of deferred revenue
amounted to HK$93,414,000 (2017: HK$68,717,000). During
the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue recognised from
unutilised prepaid packages amounted to HK$2,359,000 (2017:
HK$2,494,000).
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are included in note 13 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from change or improvements in the provision of
services, or from a change in the market demand for the service
output of the asset, the expected usage of the asset, the
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of
the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skin care products in Hong Kong.
Information reported to the Group’s management, for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated and therefore no discrete
operating segment financial information is available. Accordingly,
no operating segment information is presented.

Information about geographical areas

Since all of the Group’s revenue and profit were generated from
the provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin
care products in Hong Kong and all of the Group’s non-current
assets were located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017, no geographical segment
information in accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
is presented.

Information about major clients

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single client of the
Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31
March 2017, no information about major clients in accordance
with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is presented.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

5.  Revenue, Other Income and Gain, Net 5.
Revenue represents the value of services rendered; and the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts. An analysis of revenue, other income and gain,
net is as follow:

L

NV 7
N

WA E AR R %
WASEFT R RIS EE - RE
BENHEFE  ENBRRERESH
o WA - B A R B D T

w8

= 1= O
EEm

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue KA
Treatment services BRER 112,828 90,074
Skin care products EBEMm 9,830 4,681
Medical consultation services BEG RS 459 677
Prescription and dispensing of BE 75 M B 22 AR 75
medical products 1,737 2,178
Revenue recognised from KB AREAENER
unutilised prepaid packages 2 2,359 2,494
127,213 100,104
Other income and gain, net HW A R W= F5E
Bank interest income RITHBULA 1,263 241
Insurance compensation REEEEES - 725
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEMKEZBER
plant and equipment, net gyl 46 -
Others EAh 43 117
1,352 1,083
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6. Profit before Tax 6. BRTLAE A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REFBRT RSN &G ((FA)T
(crediting): PFIBESH ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Minimum lease payments under BB ERE 2 &K
operating leases GiEEOENE 10,245 8,152
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EEEHME X (TEREEEHS
Directors’ remuneration (note 7)): (fIzE7)) -
Salaries, bonuses and other e~ TEAT R E AL
allowances 42,818 35,123
Retirement benefit scheme IRRRE T B FR
contributions (defined (FEEMH TR
contribution scheme) 1,099 847
43,917 35,970
Auditor’s remuneration ZER 2 880 880
Listing expenses LHER = 14,926
Depreciation e 6,953 6,228
Forfeiture of deposits RIS - 2,950
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write-off of HE MEEE  ME MR
items of property, plant and BEHER (W) FE
equipment, net (46) 15
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7. Directors’ Remuneration 7. EEWe
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BB GEME A FmiRE - FEL
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock B & B 2383(1)@) ~ (b) * () KO ERA
Exchange, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong ARAIE2H B (BEESTRN 2 ER T
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure BB AFEEESHMELT -
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follow:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Fees ik 540 153
Other emoluments: HuNg -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e AL NREDET 2,400 3,200
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B @ Fll s+ &I 2
(defined contribution scheme) (EREETED 18 18
2,418 3,218
2,958 3,371
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RERNMBILIERITES I
during the year were as follow: 2T :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David* S B 4 A 180 51
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo* BRER AN S A 180 51
Mr. Li Wai Kwan* FEBERE" 180 51
540 153
Appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company * HR2016F 12 19 HEZEAARR]
on 19 December 2016. HBN IENITES ©
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR - WEAREMEN TIELIE
independent non-executive directors during the year HITEE NS (2017F : E) o
(2017: Nil).
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7. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 7. EEME @)
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Certain of the Directors received remuneration from the ETEECEERAEEETHE
subsidiaries now comprising the Group for their AT E EESEAZEWBE AT
appointment as directors of these subsidiaries or their EENEAZENELARE LN
capacity as employees of these subsidiaries. The Bl - BRUEENFHMET (BES
remuneration of each of these Directors set out below KRB AR BHREOE]) -
includes those recorded in the financial statements of the
subsidiaries.
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2E BHRER
e RENEAN AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Year ended 31 March 2018 EZ2018F3 AN ALEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi* Byt - 2,400 18 2,418
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry** SEELE" - - - -
- 2,400 18 2,418
Year ended 31 March 2017 BZ2017F3831 ALEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi* EebifiEea - 3,200 18 3,218
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry** BERLE" - - - -
- 3,200 18 3,218

Appointed as a director of the Company on 6 July 2016 and re-
designated as an executive director on 19 December 2016.

Appointed as a director of the Company on 25 July 2016 and re-
designated as an executive director on 19 December 2016.
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7. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors (Continued)
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2017:
Nil).

There were no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2017: Nil).

8. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees included one (2017: one)
Director, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2017:

7.

EEN) e ))

b) BITE=D)
ER - AEBEBEETAEEL
EABS - fEBMAKREB KA
AN B % 7 EE SRR 1S (2017
F:E) .

RER - UBRENESHELRE
PRE AT o] B & /9 % HE (2017 4F -

z)

hEmaEFMES

hEEeFHHEESBE —®(2017F
—H)EE HFRFFBEN LM -
HME (2017F - MR FEEEEH

four) non-director highest paid employees are as follow: R E M FBES 0T -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Salaries and allowances Fre MoERL 15,757 13,432
Performance related bonuses BREFRIFETIL = 203
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3Rk 7E FI 5T 214 2% 72 68
15,829 13,703
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8. Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued) 8. hTHammuMES®)
The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose FEEETMEENFMNFIUATE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow: :

Number of employees

EEAH
2018 2017
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7t & 3,500,000 % 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & 7T & 4,500,000 7% 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 7T & 5,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /& 7T & 5,500,000 7 7T 2 -
4 4
9. Income Tax Expense 9. FTEEIFX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% FERN - NEBELENMSAEZREEND
(2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in 116.5% (2017 4F : 16.5%) {EHH & & 7
Hong Kong during the year. BRI -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&TT
Current BIAR
— Charge for the year — FREZH 4,954 3,320
— Underprovision/(overprovision) — BEFEREHEIRS
in prior years (FREERE) 14 (105)
Deferred tax (note 23) RIEFRIE (FIFE23) (24) 235
Total tax charge for the year FAMBE L85 4,944 3,450
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9. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax expense at the

FTiS i 7 (@)

2B 78R TE B 2R Bh R B AT AR E A
PR S BIR AR SR B B R B R 5T B A

Group’s effective tax rate is as follow: E EREERMT ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FABT
Profit before tax BR 35 A& A 31,457 3,509
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETERLE16.5% 5Tt 5,190 579

Adjustments in respect of current tax BT FEEEIFIIA

of previous years TE FH%E 14 (105)
Income not subject to tax BAERFKA (208) (53)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 110 3,199
Others Hitb (162) (170)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BEASEERBERAERIBEL L 4,944 3,450

10. Dividend

10. IR E
HE2018F3A31 BILFE @ &8RN

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2018, nor has any dividend been proposed since the

end of the reporting period (2017: Nil).

HEFBKAIRE

B &S MR AR I E

EHEIRNEARE (201745« F) -

2018 FF ¥k / EYNEREBBR A

127



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

11. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 1. ARAIEBEaRFEAEGLE
Equity Holders of the Company A 2 A
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based FRERABNHNESETIERENEEZ A
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders AREEBRBRBEAEE AEMNLEF
of the Company of HK$26,513,000 (2017: HK$59,000), and 26,513,000 7t (2017 4 : 59,0007 7T )
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of EFERAEBETLTERAOMETLSH
400,000,000 (2017: 322,191,781) in issue during the year, on 400,000,000 f% (2017 4 : 322,191,781
assumption that the Reorganisation had been completed on 1 ) st ESH (RIEEHAS KR 2016F4 A
April 2016. 1 BEAMEBR)
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue #H £2018F 3 A31H K&201743 A 31
during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. BIEFE  ANEBIWEEBEE#SWE

ZBEBTEAMRK -

12. Property, Plant and Equipment 12. W% - BE N&ME
Leasehold Fumiture ~ Treatment Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total

BENEEE  HERRE RERRE IARRE HOERE S ERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR TET Fhn TR TET Fhn TR TET

31 March 2018 201853731 A

At 31 March 2017 and ROITEIRNER

1 April 2017: M17E4A18:
Cost KA 10,416 1,429 21,136 1,431 125 2,223 2,207 45,657
Accumulated depreciaion  ZEfITE (9,970 (1,056) (16,538) (1,072) 1) (1,485) (1,429) (31,641)
Net carrying amount EAFE 446 RIE] 11,198 359 34 738 868 14,016

At 1 Apr 2017, netof RooiTELRIE

accumulated depreciation BB EGTE 446 313 11,198 359 4 738 868 14,016
Addtions HE 2,459 134 4,826 363 - 631 878 9,291
Depreciation provided duing  FRTER

the year (1,035) (204) (4521) (274 (17 (415) 481) (6959)
Disposal/wite-off e /Hish - @ - () - - ] (14)

At31 March 2018, netof X 2018E3A31A -

accumulated depreciation 21K 237E 1870 301 11,497 443 17 954 1,258 16,340
At31 March 2018; R2018E3A31A -

Cost i 11,617 800 32,562 1,728 18 2,351 2,999 52,075
Accumulated depreciation  Z:t7E (0,747) (499) (21,065) (1,285) ) (1,397) (1,741) (35,735)
Net carrying amount FEFE 1,870 301 11,497 443 17 954 1,258 16,340
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

12. W% » B MakiE )

Leasehold Fumiture Treatment Tools and Office Motor Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total
BENERE  RARRE BERE IARER  BLERE ot Bk Eh
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn Thn Fhn TEn TiEn TEn Tén FiEn
31 March 2017 01753A31H
At1 April 2016: Ro16E4A1R :
Cost A 9,740 1,376 22209 1375 118 2,223 2,123 30,184
Accumulated depreciation  Z5f#TE (8.430) @17 (13,181) 879) (80) (1,040) (1,027) 25,556)
Net carrying amount HEFE 1,304 459 9,048 500 38 1,183 1,09 13,628
At 1 April 2016, net of RO6E4A1R
accumulated depreciaton BB EFHE 1,304 459 9,048 500 3 1,183 1,096 13628
Addltions hE 676 129 5,507 104 18 - 197 6,631
Depreciation provided during £ E&
the year (1534) (213 (3,357) (244) (1) (445) [414) (6,228)
Disposaliwrite-off &/l - @ - (1) 1) - 1) (19)
At31 March 2017, netof ~ R2017E3A318
acoumulated depreciaion BB ZHTE 446 313 1,198 359 34 738 868 14,016
At 31 March 2017: ROITE3ASIA
Cost s 10416 1429 21,736 1431 125 2,223 2,97 45,657
Accumulated depreciaton  23Hi7E (0970) (1,056) (16,538) (1,072 (1) (1,489) (1,429) (31,641)
Net carrying amount BE A 446 318 11,198 359 34 738 868 14,016
13. Goodwill 13. &
HK$'000
T
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2016, MR2016F4H1H8 20174 3A318 -
31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018 2017F 4 A1H 20183 A31HZ
B K BRI B 4,305
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13. Goodwill (continued)

On 26 December 2009, the Group acquired the business of
Health Max Laser and Medical Skin Care Limited (“Health
Max”), a company controlled by Mr. Lai Ying, the sibling of Ms.
Lai Ka Yee Gigi. Health Max was engaged in the provision of
medical aesthetic services.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a 24-month period. Assumptions were
used in the value in use calculation. The following describes
each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

° Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.

° Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of
increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 24-month period is 3% for each reporting
period.

o The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 14% (2017:
15%).
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14. Inventories 14. 78
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT Fi&T
Skin care products EEER 1,725 229
Consumables and other supplies JEFEm M E A fE @ 2,494 1,475
4,219 1,704

15. Trade Receivables

5. E S IA

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFET

Credit card receivables ZH-REWTA 20,104 851
Others Hih 65 1
20,169 852

The Group’s trading terms with its clients are mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement while the trading terms with its
corporate customers are on credit. The credit period is generally
2 to 30 days for credit card settlement for the respective
financial institutions and up to 60 days for corporate customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBERTFNRZHEARERRESD
R/SfERREEMREEICERTFPHR
DERREEREE - BESREEIAE
AREEZEER—RB2EI0KMHE
CEFPHNEEHRRZ /60K - AKE
BOBBEERKEZ BEFIE - BE
FREGERR SRAEEETHEHE
Higeh - ARBUEpEE 5 RUGRIA
BB AR M A E B s i
It ERRUGRER/RE
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An ageing analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date, is as follow:

15. Trade Receivables (Continued) 15. B 5 EINFZIE (#)

B 5 RIRIERE Z B A8 AR o A a0
T~

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETT

Within 1 month —@AR 19,394 852
1 to 3 months —Z==1{@A 732 -
Over 3 months =@EAMNE 43 -
20,169 852

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follow:

KRB ER &R BB A E 5 EUYGRIE
FREe AT T

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired BR e HA T R (B 19,343 852
1 to 3 months past due wWEH—Z==EA 798 -
Over 3 months past due wEI={E A E 28 -
20,169 852

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of receivables due from financial institutions in respect
of credit card settlements and corporate customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
financial institutions and corporate customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
Directors are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balance is still
considered fully recoverable.
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16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

17.

16. FARTFRIR ~ 25 M A UK

8

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Prepayments AR RIE 1,758 1,535
Deposits b 8,011 5,129

Deposits paid for the purchase of items of ~ 1ZBEY) 2 « #e28 I 25 45
property, plant and equipment EfRHEE 4,293 2,497
Other receivables E h e W k1A 625 210
14,687 9,371

Analysed into: DA

Non-current portion IEmENEB D 7,445 4,980
Current portion mEE S 7,242 4,391
14,687 9,371

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to MEREES I HEERCENZS
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history T EURTE o

of default.

Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company 17, EBREAIERR A 7] S B3 5 ik

and Related Parties

N EEERBEBHSRE - Ll EsT

Particulars of the amount due from the ultimate holding JEW S I IR A BRI FIRFE B AT

company are as follow:

31 March 2017

2017 3HA31H

Maximum

amount

outstanding

during
31 March the year 1 April
2017 FABKER 2016 4
3A31H RETH 4A1H8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHBT T

Sunny Bright Group Holdings HFAERE R A 7]

Limited - 5 5
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17, BRI AE R B8 T AR

=

17. Balances with the Ultimate Holding Company
and Related Parties (Continued)
Particulars of the amounts due from related parties are as FEURE:E A IEFEIB T

R

follow:

31 March 2017

201743 A31H

Maximum

amount

outstanding

during
31 March the year 1 April
2017 FARAKER 20164
3H31H ReLHR 4818
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FABT T
Due from related parties FEUREBE S FIE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi* BN 2+ - 24,929 23,938
Mr. Lai Ying** BB - 490 332
Cos Max Holdings Limited" Cos Max Holdings Limited" - 97 87
Cheer Beauty Group Limited™ Cheer Beauty Group
Limited™ - 9 9
Sunny Bright Medical Limited" Sunny Bright Medical
Limited" - 20 20
Solar Solution Development Solar Solution Development
Limited” Limited" - 21 21
Jing Ying (HK) Limited" Jing Ying (HK) Limited" - 111 111
- 24,518
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is a Director of the Company BYMEZ LT ABRNARES

Mr. Lai Ying is the sibling of Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi

A These related companies were jointly controlled by Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi
and Mr. Ma Ting Keung Patrick, the spouse of Ms. Kai Ka Yee Gigi.

AN This related company was controlled by Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi.

The above balances with related parties are non-trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

134 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2018

RS BB AL L RS
A % &R N B R BRI 2+ N F5 35 5t A (32
if L ABCHR) KRS
AN BB B BN 2 R o

N EBRRRESTNERRIFEZMEE -

BEA - RERERE

=y i,

JE IR TA

Hi o
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For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

18.

19.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time

18. e MR eFEYWEHEEHT

Deposits HIF K
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH R 38,698 25,903
Time deposits TEBTER 123,508 112,794
162,206 138,697

Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for & : BtiE R {EE%8/E MK

credit card facilities I 5E BATFE R (51,827) (3,253)
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBESZEEY 110,379 135,444

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

Trade Payables

RITREBBARTEAMNEFENT
BN R EREFI S - EHIEFUR AR EAD
RESFLAH—ET_EANREKEEB
EHERN R B - RITER L ERF
RNENOREROCHELEERTN
RTT -

19. BB RNFA

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FABT

Third party suppliers FE=HHER 705 887

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follow:

RBERR BEFRNFARERAH
HRRER DATEAT -

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TET

Within 1 month 11EA A 705 887

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have
an average settlement term of 30 days.

ZHEMNKRBBTIE  FHEEH R
A308 -
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20. Other Payables and Accruals 20. HubfEFOE K ERTE B
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Other payables and accruals HAt I RE R ERTE A 6,086 6,579
Receipts in advance TEU R TIE 297 151
6,383 6,730

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average Hi e RIBRET B - NS A —

term of 1 to 3 months. Z=={@A8 -
21. Deferred Revenue 21, JEEUY 25
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET TAT
Deferred revenue RIEW z= 93,414 68,717
The movements in deferred revenue are as follows: SEIEI S S BT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
At the beginning of the year £ 68,717 57,388

Receipts from sales of one-off HE—REER - BRER

treatments, treatment packages and BB HFERUFRE

prepaid cash coupons, net 141,342 105,002
Revenue recognised upon RHRBECERRE

the provision of services (112,828) (90,074)
Revenue recognised upon & EmE DR E

the sales of products (1,458) (1,105)
Revenue recognised from RERFEABAER W E

unutilised prepaid packages (2,359) (2,494)
At the end of the year FR 93,414 68,717
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22. Provision for Reinstatement Costs

22.

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of

dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and

restoring the leased premises which they are currently located

BRI

BERABEIEEREEAEBRDR
188 7 S B TR DA R 7 o T o
AENENSERENEERARRD

PR BR A AT o

back to their original state of condition if and when the Group

vacates these leased premises.

HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2016 M20165F4 A1 R 1,571
Additional provision REIMNE S 236
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 MR2017F3 31 HK2017F4 A1 H 1,807
Additional provision FINE AR 220
At 31 March 2018 201843 A31H 2,027
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion IEmEN D 1,530 930
Current portion mENEB D 497 877
2,027 1,807

2018 FF ¥k / EYNEREBBR A
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23. Deferred Tax 23, RIEFIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the EEMBEERGBERERNNES WO T -

year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets FEEBIEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future

allowance taxable profits Total
A AR SR IR
BHERITE ERTRRHN
BENTE &8 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A1H 650 242 892
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FREA/ (kA ) BE
to profit or loss during the year HIEIEF 1B
(note 9) (PH#E9) 171 (242) (71)
At 31 March 2017 and MN2017F3A31HK
1 April 2017 20174 A1H 821 - 821
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss  F R AR HELFIE
during the year (note 9) (BizE9) 68 - 68
At 31 March 2018 F20184%3 431 H 889 - 889
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23. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

23. IELEFLIE (&)
EEREEE

Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation

AR ITE
WITERE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4 A1 H 1,177
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FAHK B B RLETTE
during the year (note 9) (FfzE9) 164
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 R2017F3A31B X
20174 A1 H 1,341
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHR B BEMNIELETRIE
during the year (note 9) (FF5E9) 44
At 31 March 2018 ®2018F3 A31H 1,385

2018 FF ¥k / EYNEREBBR A
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23. Deferred Tax (Continued) 23. IRIERIE (1)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax

REREHR ETEEVHREELAR
ERNEGHMBARRKEE - LTRAE
B LB SRS MAETTRRERIBAE R D

balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: i
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised REFE PSR R ERE
in the consolidated statement of EEFIAE =55
financial position 889 835
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RErE MR R R ERE
in the consolidated statement of EERIABE SRR
financial position (1,385) (1,355)
(496) (520)

At 31 March 2017, deferred tax assets had not been
recognised in respect of the deductible temporary differences
of HK$5,000 as it was not considered probable that taxable

R2017E3 A 31 B » I 3k 0] H0 5 i
ZH5,0008 T ERIELERIBEE © Jhh
AR AT BE S B AR B 0i F AT R LA B 8 E

profits will be available against which the above items can be gy o
utilised.
24. Share Capital 24, IR
Shares dn)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 J&&[% 0.01 57T
HK$0.01 each EORER L 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & &% 0.01 87T
HK$0.01 each EoRER il 4,000 4,000
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24.

Share Capital (Continued)
Shares (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s authorised and
issued share capital during the period from 6 July 2016 (date of

24, AR ()
13 (&)
RAEEH2016%F7 A6 8 (GEA B ER)
£20184F 3 A31 HAAE MEZHITIRA

incorporation) to 31 March 2018 is as follow: ZEEBBMnT
Number of Nominal
ordinary value of
shares ordinary shares
ZEREE EZEREE
Notes HK$’000
ihg=s FHT
Authorised: EE
Upon incorporation on R20164F7 A6 H
6 July 2016 FEMA Sz 18 @) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised JETERR AN BN
share capital (b) 1,962,000,000 19,620
At 31 March 2017, 1 April 2017 2201738318 -
and 31 March 2018 20174 A1 AR
201843 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE :
Upon incorporation on R2016 7 H6H
6 July 2016 EERIIT VAL (@) 2 -
Issue of shares pursuant to RIFEAZEITARD
the Reorganisation (©) 299,999,998 3,000
Issue of shares under initial REERXAREE
public offering BRI (d) 100,000,000 1,000
At 31 March 2017, R2017F3A31H -
1 April 2017 and 2017F4 A1H K
31 March 2018 201843 A31H 400,000,000 4,000
Notes: BiaE -

On 6 July 2016, the Company was incorporated with authorised share
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each. On the same date, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 was
issued and allotted to Mr. Ma Ting Keung Patrick and another 1 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 was issued and allotted to Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19 December 2016, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$20,000,000 by the creation of 1,962,000,000 additional ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares of the Company.

(@) RH2016F7 A6 H » AARFEMAIL AT
fi% 7% % 380,000 7T+ % 438,000,000 ik &
fREEO0.01 B LMY - KA B - 1IREAR
EECO BT EERD BT REETHE
WA T BIM R EFREE0.01 B T Y
ARBETRECE TRINmZL -

(0) RIER2016F 12 B10 BB T MREE -
1% 18 1% 3% 1,962,000,000 % & B% I 1E0.018
THEAR(ESFEREERMNEARS
MEs) AN RLEE R 380,000 LI =
20,000,000 7T °
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24. Share Capital (Continued)

25.

Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19 December 2016,
299,999,998 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued, allotted and
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation from the share
premium account to the holder of shares whose name appeared on the
register of members of the Company at the close of business on 19
December 2016 in proportion to their respective shareholding. This
allotment and capitalisation issue were conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the placing of new shares in
connection with the Company’s initial public offering as detailed in note (d)
below.

(d) In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 100,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.8 each
per share for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$80,000,000. Dealing in the shares of the Company on GEM of The
Stock Exchange commenced on 10 January 2017.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 25 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available
personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
Directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, and any consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners and service providers of any member of the Group.
The Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
maximum number of shares available for issue was 40,000,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue.
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%£17299,999,098 i% & % T E0.01 5 LK A
BRF BB R EBAR - 2B RE NI
BEADAGERNARBERETIRHER
e ERSHERAEE  FFEHRTX
M 5T (o) ©

(@ A#ITARARME X AFEE 100,000,000
f& TR EE0.01 B i L AR IZ B AR0.84
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. BB IEETEl (&)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of
offer of grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 7 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.0.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the scheme (2017: Nil).

BUAERATEEMNI2EARN(ER
ROBREE R L)  REZEIRAR
BIMEM R AR AR 8RR 2 B (8
REEH - BT REARITE ZBIRE)
TLAITEERY - FETT R K EIT 2y £
EASEBARRDHEITRNZ1% -

BIREAREBEZAEGRRZRTE  NE
ERHBRER  RERHZBREE
AskERATRATE EE2EFEY
BRERDREZAREXREBRE
& (ERNERIBR T - AR EBREE
AOMEEREBREZNER ML
Bz EOEZM) EHTABSB10
F) e

BREERALARARARRHELE
REAMECRA(BEREEBEREER
MEZAB R REIRHRETZ
BAERY - B 1.087T -

BREZTEEIHESETE  HHETT
FEEELRUATERSE  ()ARAR
MR EX A RER 8 A REXRMAD
ZWHE (WARRRDNEZRELH A
HAs AR 7 B EBXMEBARERAN
Sz U E ¢ R (i) AN R R B
ZEfE

BRER A A B WER B HERRX

gLrRE-

FR - ARBLERBEAEOENEE
R EEFR D EFIERE (20174 « &) -
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26. Reserves 26. f#E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements REBRRNFENBEFENHEEHEEE
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the RESRERRFECS BN EERE
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 88 of the BRIEG -

financial statements.

Merger reserve EPtEE
The merger reserve represents reserves arising from the BB EAE LS -
Reorganisation.
27. Related Party Transactions 27. BERR 5
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed @ BARPBFRREAMIS PTEFDAR
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had S NAERRIN  REBRFRELRE
the following material transaction with a related party ATEUTERRS :

during the year:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&T
Listing expenses WX
— Arelated company* — —[AEEAR" - 1,549
* The spouse of certain Director has significant * ETESRBEEERA
influence over the related company. BEATE-

() Compensation of key management personnel of the b)) AEBXTZERAENHS (B
Group, including Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in SRR T 7 TR ERNEEEE)
note 7 to the financial statements, is as follow: m

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits HHEEEREA 5,629 6,179
Post-employment benefits BEER B R A 74 69
5,703 6,248
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28.

29.

30.

Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group entered into
a rental agreement in respect of its medical aesthetic centre
under an operating lease. Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the rental agreement, the Group is required to restore the site
to the conditions as stipulated in the rental agreement.
Accordingly, the Group had accrued and capitalised the
estimated restoration cost of HK$220,000 (2017: HK$236,000)
when such obligations arose.

 GZERERERMEE

REZE2018F3A31HILFER A%
EpEEEAPONKEEHET Y HE
Tﬁf ;o BIEHEERRMNER RGNS K
EERZSEEERERZREN
HM% c A AEEB R REARE
FIEA AR TRTERTHE1EMK 45220,000
77T (2017 4F : 236,000787T) ©

Pledge of Assets 29. BEEKM
Details of the Group’s credit card facilities granted by financial HEeRIEEE T AEENERFEESE
institutions, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are EVRAEBREEER > SBHRAK
included in note 18 to the financial statements. WIEEmER M 18
Operating Lease Arrangements 30. WEHELH
As lessee ERAEEA
The Group leases its medical aesthetic centres, office premises, AEBRELEHERHERAETES
a car park space and certain office equipment under operating ERFRL - WAE  FBESRETHA
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for ERfE KBy BEVENHEBANF
terms ranging from 1 month to 5 years. Leases for office —[AAZERF - E@s BEMRLER
equipment are negotiated for a term of 5 years. HHOHRBART -
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future REBRER  REBERBETATREL
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating EHELE T EBEEZ RKESEDEN
leases falling due as follow: HEBRENT -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Within one year —%FR 11,372 8,526
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFEERF(BREEEMF) 22,315 7,310
33,687 15,836
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31. Commitments 31, HIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B TEHN EXH 0K ST E LR
30 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at 15N REBNHRERAREBUATHER
the end of the reporting period: AOE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fi&T
Contracted, but not provided for: BaT4) - BREE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMRE 441 400
32. Financial Instruments by Category 32. wEREE TSI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REERRZERS SN e T ART
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follow: BT
Financial assets TWEE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loans and receivables: B Rk EBGRIE
Trade receivables g 5 W IE 20,169 852
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t AFERFRIE « 124 & E i LU
deposits and other receivables (note 16)  ZIAME B EE (MisE16) 8,636 5,339
Pledged time deposits BT TR 51,827 3,253
Cash and cash equivalents HERESZEEY 110,379 135,444
191,011 144,888
Financial liabilities =R
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHEN AT ENESRAE
Trade payables B SRR 705 887
Financial liabilities included in other sSFAEMERN BN ESEF
payables and accruals HeRAaRE 2,159 3,292
2,864 4,179
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33. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial 33. € TEAMAFEEL AFEE
Instruments K

AEBESBMTANEAERAFE(TE

EEEE A AFENERE) DT

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follow:

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE A¥E
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT FET FH&T
Financial assets SREE
Deposits, non-current portion %4 » ERENEL D 3,152 2,483 2,630 2,204

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEEINEEY  BEeNRSZEEY -

cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables, ST BSEWRRIE - EB5
trade payables, the current portion of financial assets included FENZTE - st ATBNZENES/EED

in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and financial TEIE D C e R EHMEWRIBIA RET

liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial
assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value.

ARMEMNFTEREFTERNERAE
MAFEREREERS  TEHARZK
ETAREHAIIE -

SRAERAEZATEAABRSH
(BB RBRE BRI B AP TR
ZTAMSBAR - THERER
PR AT

BReNERDHBONLTFECKAAR
= =

BEGR  FEERREFAGIMANT
AR AMERERRLRSRE
DFESFR

RBERR - AREBEL(AIRAFE
AEZEREERTRAE -
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and SRIERE IR B IE RIBUER

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise pledged
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Details in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade receivables are disclosed in note 15 to these
financial statements. The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise pledged time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
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34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. R EMREIE B TR @)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRS (E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the REBRBEER  BIESOFITER
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual AN ES T E R BRI T :
undiscounted payments, was as follow:
Less than 1 year
—FR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade payables B SRS FIE 705 887
Financial liabilities included in other ST AR b TR K e & A
payables and accruals HEmBE 2,159 3,292
2,864 4,179

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital to the
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of the
shareholders’ equity.

BEXREE
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BRKELES#FRENEAR L X
AR XS R AER AR RREE -

REBBRBEERSESE(CRBHEEEN
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B AREREE AEEeHBRAR
REATHRE - MRE S EARE R
REATHIR D o A& E B EEF AR
BEARENR - REZE2018F3A31 B K
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IS AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HZE2018F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. 2K & 2 B f& ik R =
Information about the statement of financial position of the BERXANTNRBERARNTBRIERE

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow: HEHIT -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZRE = -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables H b B W FR0E 567 136
Pledged time deposits EHEATEHER 50,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRIESEEY 60,389 75,634
Total current assets MBEERE 110,956 75,770
CURRENT LIABILITY G =R
Due to subsidiaries FEAH B A Bl FIA 52,873 18,772
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 58,083 56,998
Net assets BEFE 58,083 56,998
EQUITY B
Issued capital BT 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note (a)) (Mt @) 54,083 52,998
Total equity = BE 58,083 56,998
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2018
#HZE2018F3A31 HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

36.

(Continued)
Note:

(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow:

35. KRBl ZWBARREK @)

Wi

@  ARBZEHEEBELT

Share
premium Accumulated Total
account losses equity
R RER ZitEE EFAH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT
At 6 July 2016 (date of incorporation) H2016F7 A6 H (AREIKIZAH) - - -
Loss for the period and total BAEBE RS EEELE
comprehensive loss for the period - (14,790) (14,790)
Issue of shares pursuant to the RIREAEITIRD
Reorganisation (3,000) - (3,000)
Issue of shares under initial public offering 1R 1& & /X AR 1TIGD 79,000 - 79,000
Share issue expenses BITRINER (8,212) - 8212
At 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2017 MR2017F3A31HK
20174 A1 H 67,788 (14,790) 52,998
Profit for the year and total comprehensive 4[4 FI| & £ & 2 U A 4258
income for the year - 1,085 1,085
At 31 March 2018 MR20184F 3 A31H 67,788 (13,705) 54,083

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 31 May 2018.

36. #LEBIEHRE

B mER N 2018F5 A31 AKES

et R RT3

2018 FF ¥k / EYNEREBBR A
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEFHEE

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31AHLFE

2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FAET FHET
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 127,213 100,104 83,352 74,000
Profit before tax BT BT A 31,457 3,509 21,951 15,232
Income tax expense e i = (4,944) (3,450) (3,463) (1,737)
Profit for the year and total FiN/NEIE ¥ =N
comprehensive income for FEBMNRFE
the year attributable to ERELPNEE
owners of the Company 26,513 59 18,488 18,495

As at 31 March

MW38AS31H
2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET FAT FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets BEE 223,371 170,623 84,112 68,612
Total liabilities BreE (106,268) (80,033) (65,364) (57,752)

Equity attributable to owners AABEE AEL
of the Company A 117,103 90,590 18,748 10,860
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